
 

 
Agenda  

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH  
Meeting of the Finance Subcommittee   

December 12, 2023 – 3:00pm  
City Managers Conference Room 

1400 Highland Avenue 
Manhattan Beach CA 90266  

 

   
 1.   Public Comments 

2. Approval of Minutes from September 28, 2023 Finance Subcommittee Meeting 
  Recommended Action:  Approve 

3. Review of Results of Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Audit 
  Recommended Action:  Receive and File 

4. CalPERS Annual Update - Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
  Recommended Action:  Receive and File 

5. Investment Portfolio for the Month Ending October 31, 2023 
  Recommended Action:  Receive and File 

6. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Monthly Schedule of Transient Occupancy Tax, Lease 
Payments and Miscellaneous Accounts Receivables 
 Recommended Action:  Receive and File 

7. April 1, 2023 through June 30, 2023, Bad Debt Write Offs for Miscellaneous Accounts 
Receivables, Utility Billing and Ambulance Transports Referred to Collections
 Recommended Action:  Receive and File  

Adjourn  
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Finance Subcommittee Meeting DRAFT Action Minutes 
 
Meeting Date:   September 28, 2:30 p.m. 
Location:   City Manager’s Conference Room – City Hall 
Recording Secretary:  Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager 
 
In Attendance:  Tim Lilligren, Treasurer   

Richard Montgomery, Mayor  
Steve Napolitano, Council Member 
Bruce Moe, City Manager 
George Gabriel, Assistant to the City Manager 

  Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director 
Julie Bondarchuk, Financial Controller 
Amira Khodari, Accounting Supervisor 
Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager 
Emy-Rose Hanna, Revenue Services Supervisor 

 
Called to Order:  2:30 p.m. by Tim Lilligren, Treasurer 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Public Comments 
None. 

Agenda Item #2 - Approval of Minutes from June 26, 2023 Finance Subcommittee 
Meeting 
The Finance Subcommittee approved the minutes of June 26, 2023. 

Agenda Item #3 - Annual Review of Investment Policy 
Finance Department staff informed the Finance Subcommittee (FSC) that the City’s 
Investment Policy was reviewed by staff and the City’s investment brokers, which  
recommended updating the Policy to revise Section 9. Investment Instruments in accordance 
with a revised State statute prohibiting purchases with a forward settlement date exceeding 
45 days from the time of investment. 

The Finance Subcommittee approved the Investment Policy. 

Agenda Item #4 - Investment Portfolio for August 2023 
The Finance Subcommittee received and filed the report. 

Agenda Item #5 – Month End Financials for August 2023  
The Finance Subcommittee received and filed the report.   

Agenda Item #6 – Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Monthly Schedule of Transient Occupancy 
Tax, Lease Payments and Miscellaneous Accounts Receivables 
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Finance Department staff informed the Finance Subcommittee (FSC) that the Short-term 
Rental Program continues to grow each month with an increase in total operators that are 
doing business in Manhattan Beach, resulting in an increase in TOT revenues from short-term 
rentals.  

Additionally, Finance Department staff provided an update on the COVID-19 Business Loans 
that were issued to fourteen (14) businesses during the pandemic. Of the fourteen (14) 
businesses, three (3) have remained non-responsive in despite repeated attempts to collect 
their loan repayments.  

The Finance Subcommittee received and filed the report. 

Agenda Item #7 – January 1, 2023 through March 31, 2023 Bad Debt Write Offs for 
Miscellaneous Accounts Receivables, Utility Billing and Ambulance Transports Referred 
to Collections 
The Finance Subcommittee received and filed the report. 
 

Agenda Item #8 – Update on Status of the Proposed Increase to Stormwater 
Assessments  
Finance Department staff informed the Finance Subcommittee (FSC) that the Proposition 218 
Protest Notices regarding the Stormwater Assessment rate increase were recently mailed to 
all property owners to allow an opportunity to submit a protest ballot prior to the November 
7, 2023, Public Hearing. Staff also provided an update to FSC on the progress of the 
mailings and status of the Proposition 218 process. 
 
Agenda Item #9 – Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 2:57 p.m. 



 

 

 

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH 
FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

TO:    Members of the Finance Subcommittee 

THROUGH: Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director 

FROM:   Julie Bondarchuk, Financial Controller 
  Amira Khodari, Accounting and Payroll Supervisor 

SUBJECT:   Review of the Financial Audit Results for FY 2022-2023 

DATE:   December 12, 2023 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Finance Subcommittee discuss the FY 2022-2023 audit results, and 

receive and file this report. 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
The City’s audit preparation and financial reporting process takes a full year to complete.  The first 
phase of the audit began on the week of April 10, 2023, where our auditors (Lance, Soll, & 
Lunghard, LLP or LSL) conducted the interim audit. The interim audit typically focuses on the City’s 
internal controls.  Our auditors commenced the City’s final audit the week of September 25, 2023.  
The final audit is typically focused on the City’s financial statements. Based on the results of the audit, 
staff foresees no issue with obtaining an unmodified opinion, which means the City’s financial 
statements are fairly presented in all material respects. A report will be prepared and presented to 
the City Council with the results.  

 

DISCUSSION: 
Effective FY 2022-23, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

issued Statement No. 96 – Subscription Based IT Arrangements (SBITA).  This modified the way the 



City accounts for software subscriptions in that the City would recognize a liability should the lease 

meet certain criteria as defined by the accounting standard. 

 

Due to the timing of the completion of the FY 2022-2023 audit, staff has attached the financial 

statements and footnotes from the draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The final 

ACFR, Letter of Transmittal, Management Discussion and Analysis, and Statistical Section are in 

production, and will be included with the final report provided to the full City Council on January 16, 

2024. Ms. Kelly Telford, partner with the audit firm of Lance, Soll and Lunghard, LLP, is present to 

answer questions. 

 

Attachment:  FY 2022-2023 ACFR Draft (Financial Statements with Footnotes) 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments 94,550,760$     37,363,746$     131,914,506$   
Receivables:

Accounts 1,082,647         1,298,327         2,380,974         
Taxes 4,196,594         -                        4,196,594         
Accrued interest 822,356            -                        822,356            
Due from other governments 3,320,926         -                        3,320,926         
Grants 1,387,339         -                        1,387,339         
Notes and loans 98,321              -                        98,321              
Leases 23,843,400       -                        23,843,400       

Restricted assets:
Cash and investments 2,859,803         -                        2,859,803         
Cash with fiscal agent 1,337,736         133,381            1,471,117         

Due from OPEB Trust Fund 726,360            -                        726,360            
Inventories 92,751              844,321            937,072            
Prepaid costs 7,291                -                        7,291                
Capital assets (not being depreciated) 51,522,462       51,031,558       102,554,020     
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation/amortization) 83,189,157       45,286,683       128,475,840     

Total assets 269,037,903     135,958,016     404,995,919     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding 273,595            -                        273,595            
Pension-related 64,359,227       1,020,839         65,380,066       
OPEB-related 8,078,421         328,159            8,406,580         

Total deferred outflows of resources 72,711,243       1,348,998         74,060,241       

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5,691,628         2,732,864         8,424,492         
Accrued liabilities 2,311,661         626,950            2,938,611         
Accrued payroll 1,198,611         -                        1,198,611         
Accrued interest 239,442            123,768            363,210            
Deposits payable 4,490,543         126,592            4,617,135         
Unearned revenue 2,380,852         -                        2,380,852         
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year: bonds, notes, leases, SBITAs, 
claims, and compensated absences 17,464,751       769,617            18,234,368       

Due in more than one year:
Net pension liability 15,195,585       574,646            15,770,231       
Net OPEB liability 6,913,991         280,860            7,194,851         
Bonds, notes, leases, SBITA, claims and

compensated absences 108,147,812     7,615,204         115,763,016     
Total liabilities 164,034,876     12,850,501       176,885,377     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 31,140,510       90,586              31,231,096       
OPEB-related 1,841,973         74,825              1,916,798         
Lease-related 23,463,957       -                        23,463,957       

Total deferred inflows of resources 56,446,440       165,411            56,611,851       

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 114,823,240     89,903,527       204,726,767     
Restricted:

Public safety 548,830            -                        548,830            
Recreation 906,241            -                        906,241            
Public works 238,036            -                        238,036            
Pension benefits 1,721,763         -                        1,721,763         
Debt service 1,102,123         -                        1,102,123         
Business improvement districts -                        373,149            373,149            

Unrestricted 1,927,597         34,014,426       35,942,023       
Total net position 121,267,830$   124,291,102$   245,558,932$   

June 30, 2023

Primary Government

See Notes to Financial Statement 1
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants
Functions/Programs:

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government 18,744,766$     4,739,490$       3,961,729$       -$                      
Public safety 93,202,238       4,479,503         218,103            -                        
Culture and recreation 10,217,475       4,510,778         -                        -                        
Public works 16,195,201       6,384,078         598,316            3,280,173         
Interest on long-term debt 2,613,946         -                        -                        -                        

Total governmental activities 140,973,626     20,113,849       4,778,148         3,280,173         

Business-type activities:
Water 11,392,584       14,376,165       -                        -                        
Stormwater 1,396,743         765,627            -                        -                        
Wastewater 2,358,251         3,274,511         -                        -                        
Parking 2,354,616         4,301,517         -                        -                        
County Parking Lot 701,660            1,058,319         -                        -                        
State Pier and Parking Lot 464,623            837,120            -                        -                        

Total business-type activities 18,668,477       24,613,259       -                        -                        

Total primary government 159,642,103$   44,727,108$     4,778,148$       3,280,173$       

General revenues and transfers
General revenues:

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Transient occupancy taxes
Franchise taxes
Business licenses taxes
Other taxes
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous income
Gain on sale of capital asset

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position-beginning

Restatement of Net Position

Net position-ending

Program Revenues
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

(10,043,547)$       -$                         (10,043,547)$       
(88,504,632)         -                           (88,504,632)         

(5,706,697)           -                           (5,706,697)           
(5,932,634)           -                           (5,932,634)           
(2,613,946)           -                           (2,613,946)           

(112,801,456)       -                           (112,801,456)       

-                           2,983,581            2,983,581            
-                           (631,116)              (631,116)              
-                           916,260               916,260               
-                           1,946,901            1,946,901            
-                           356,659               356,659               
-                           372,497               372,497               
-                           5,944,782            5,944,782            

(112,801,456)       5,944,782            (106,856,674)       

41,836,587          -                           41,836,587          
14,267,013          -                           14,267,013          

7,584,021            -                           7,584,021            
1,296,708            -                           1,296,708            
4,935,627            -                           4,935,627            
1,167,944            -                           1,167,944            
4,830,041            406,776               5,236,817            
1,119,260            -                           1,119,260            

45,573                 -                           45,573                 
(547,908)              547,908               -                           

76,534,866          954,684               77,489,550          

(36,266,590)         6,899,466            (29,367,124)         

156,437,394        117,279,862        273,717,256        

1,097,026            111,774               1,208,800            

121,267,830$      124,291,102$      245,558,932$      

Primary Government
Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

Total Total
Nonmajor Governmental

General Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and investments 39,671,169$     12,854,553$     17,805,550$     70,331,272$     
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible):

Accounts 1,073,238         -                        9,409                1,082,647         
Taxes 4,115,521         81,073              -                        4,196,594         
Accrued interest 822,356            -                        -                        822,356            
Due from other governments 538,236            865,584            1,917,106         3,320,926         
Grants -                        -                        1,387,339         1,387,339         
Notes and loans 98,321              -                        -                        98,321              
Leases 23,843,400       -                        -                        23,843,400       

Due from OPEB Trust Fund 726,360            -                        -                        726,360            
Inventories 3,510                -                        -                        3,510                
Prepaid costs 7,291                -                        -                        7,291                
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments 2,859,803         -                        -                        2,859,803         
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 1,102,123         235,613            -                        1,337,736         

Total assets 74,861,328$     14,036,823$     21,119,404$     110,017,555$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,399,970$       635,692$          1,470,905$       5,506,567$       
Accrued liabilities 1,694,537         87,166              529,958            2,311,661         
Accrued payroll 1,198,611         -                        -                        1,198,611         
Deposits payable 4,488,802         -                        1,741                4,490,543         
Unearned revenues 1,507,309         -                        873,543            2,380,852         
Interest payable -                        233,693            -                        233,693            

Total liabilities 12,289,229       956,551            2,876,147         16,121,927       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues 365,420            865,584            2,642,641         3,873,645         
Lease-related 23,463,957       -                        -                        23,463,957       

Total deferred inflows of resources 23,829,377       865,584            2,642,641         27,337,602       

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable 392,743            -                        -                        392,743            
Restricted 2,823,886         -                        13,729,606       16,553,492       
Committed -                        12,214,688       1,871,010         14,085,698       
Assigned 58,120              -                        -                        58,120              
Unassigned 35,467,973       -                        -                        35,467,973       

Total fund balances (deficits) 38,742,722       12,214,688       15,600,616       66,558,026       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits) 74,861,328$     14,036,823$     21,119,404$     110,017,555$   

 Capital 
Improvement 

 Capital 
Projects Funds 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds 66,558,026$     

130,384,799     

Deferred outflows-pension related 62,758,395       
Deferred outflows-OPEB related 7,534,221         
Deferred inflows-pension related (30,996,789)      
Deferred inflows-OPEB related (1,717,889)        

Total deferred outflows and inflows related to postemployment benefits 37,577,938       

Long-term receivables 3,873,645         
Total other long-term assets 3,873,645         

7,390,862         

Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due on leases and subscriptions (4,084)               
not reported in governmental funds. (4,084)               

Pension Obligation Bonds (79,655,211)      
COPS Payable (16,815,000)      
Leases and SBITA payable (1,504,067)        
Compensated absences (4,422,604)        
Net pension liability (14,283,868)      
Net OPEB liability (6,448,233)        

Total long-term liabilities (123,128,983)    

Deferred amount on refunding 273,595            
Bond premiums (1,657,968)        

Total premiums, discounts, and deferred items (1,384,373)        

Net position of governmental activities 121,267,830$   

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are not reported
in the funds.

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and refundings and similar items when 
debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization, used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes and net differences 
between projected and actual earnings, and contributions subsequent to the measurement date for the 
postretirement benefits (pension and OPEB) are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position.

Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are
either labeled unavailable or not reported in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management charge the cost of certain activities, such as 
equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds. The assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of the internal service funds are included in 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total Total
Nonmajor Governmental

     General    Funds Funds
REVENUES

Taxes 66,225,824$     895,413$          3,694,747$       70,815,984$     
Licenses and permits 3,880,050         35,624              -                        3,915,674         
Intergovernmental 453,018            97,601              5,080,220         5,630,839         
Charges for services 12,051,059       549,704            3,040                12,603,803       
Use of money and property 4,846,538         1,920                (18,417)             4,830,041         
Fines and forfeitures 2,612,258         97,904              -                        2,710,162         
Contributions -                        2,137,630         -                        2,137,630         
Miscellaneous 1,451,967         -                        3,340                1,455,307         

Total revenues 91,520,714       3,815,796         8,762,930         104,099,440     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 16,379,649       -                        -                        16,379,649       
Public safety 44,939,777       -                        201,862            45,141,639       
Culture and recreation 7,656,724         -                        670,111            8,326,835         
Public works 8,974,132         259,419            1,097,815         10,331,366       

Capital outlay 539,119            3,355,838         9,511,737         13,406,694       
Debt service:

Principal 4,560,850         685,000            20,283              5,266,133         
Interest and fiscal charges 2,093,270         480,825            11,199              2,585,294         
Trustee fees and bond issuance cost 1,600                3,650                -                        5,250                

Total expenditures 85,145,121       4,784,732         11,513,007       101,442,860     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 6,375,593         (968,936)           (2,750,077)        2,656,580         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 490,571            7,310,788         149,024            7,950,383         
Transfers out (8,475,088)        -                        (23,203)             (8,498,291)        
Lease and subscription financing 534,169            -                        -                        534,169            

Total other financing sources (uses) (7,450,348)        7,310,788         125,821            (13,739)             

Net change in fund balances (1,074,755)        6,341,852         (2,624,256)        2,642,841         

Fund balances-beginning 39,817,477       5,872,836         18,224,872       63,915,185       

Fund balances (deficit)-ending 38,742,722$     12,214,688$     15,600,616$     66,558,026$     

 Capital 
Improvement 

 Capital 
Projects Funds 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 6
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 2,642,841$       

Capital outlay 10,344,095       
Loss on disposition of capital assets (2,302)               
Depreciation/amortization expense (4,570,573)        

Total adjustment 5,764,155         

Earned but unavailable grant revenues 1,109,931         

Accrued interest for long-term liabilities. This is the net change in accrued interest
for the current period. (4,085)               

Amortization of bond premiums and discounts 94,151              
Amortization of deferred amounts on refunding (32,187)             
New subscriptions (534,169)           
Principal payments on leases 936,807            
Principal payments on subscriptions 63,236              
Principal payments on pension obligation bonds 3,246,090         
Principal payments on certificates of participation 1,020,000         

Total adjustment 4,793,928         

(783,999)           

Compensated absences 229,944            
Changes in pension liabilities and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (49,205,969)      
Changes in OPEB liabilities and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (813,336)           

Total adjustment (49,789,361)      

Change in net position of governmental activities (36,266,590)$    

The internal service funds are used by management to charge certain activities, such as equipment 
management and self insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal 
service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Governmental funds report capital outlays are expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, 
the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation and 
amortization expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation/amortization 
expense in the current period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported 
as revenues in the funds.

Bond and other debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing 
debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond and other debt 
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the 
Statement of Net Position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and 
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
Statement of Activities.
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 11,566,530$    16,168,185$    3,237,986$      
Receivables:

Accounts 941,076           258,243           975                  
Inventories 844,321           -                      -                      
Restricted:

Cash with fiscal agent 11,562             5,688               116,131           
Total current assets 13,363,489      16,432,116      3,355,092        

Noncurrent:
Advances to other funds -                      -                      900,000           
Capital assets, net 63,712,215      11,025,340      18,028,725      

Total noncurrent assets 63,712,215      11,025,340      18,928,725      
Total assets 77,075,704      27,457,456      22,283,817      
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension-related 640,991           206,959           75,309             
OPEB-related 149,040           94,347             34,181             

Total deferred outflows of resources 790,031           301,306           109,490           
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,971,731        65,066             37,662             
Accrued liabilities 620,582           160                  1,295               
Accrued interest 10,598             5,522               107,648           
Deposits payable 25                    -                      410                  
Worker's compensation claims -                      -                      -                      
Compensated absences 45,195             -                      -                      
Claims and judgments -                      -                      -                      
Leases -                      -                      -                      
Subscriptions -                      12,792 -                      
Bonds 185,707           88,043             430,784           

Total current liabilities 2,833,838        171,583           577,799           
Noncurrent liabilities:

Advances from other funds -                      -                      -                      
Compensated absences 174,909           -                      -                      
Worker's compensation claims -                      -                      -                      
Claims and judgments -                      -                      -                      
Leases -                      -                      -                      
Subscriptions -                      13,054 -                      
Bonds 1,337,310        580,143           5,343,513        
Net pension liability 365,663           111,260           40,638             
Net OPEB liability 127,558           80,748             29,254             

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,005,440        785,205           5,413,405        
Total liabilities 4,839,278        956,788           5,991,204        
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension-related 57,642             17,539             6,406               
OPEB-related 33,983             21,512             7,794               

Total deferred inflows of resources 91,625             39,051             14,200             
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 63,205,589      10,750,249      12,395,728      
Restricted for business improvement district -                      -                      373,149           
Unrestricted 9,729,243        16,012,674      3,619,026        

Total net position 72,934,832$    26,762,923$    16,387,903$    

Business-Type Activities

 Water  Wastewater  Parking 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 8
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Inventories
Restricted:

Cash with fiscal agent
Total current assets

Noncurrent:
Advances to other funds
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension-related
OPEB-related

Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Deposits payable
Worker's compensation claims
Compensated absences
Claims and judgments
Leases
Subscriptions
Bonds

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:

Advances from other funds
Compensated absences
Worker's compensation claims
Claims and judgments
Leases
Subscriptions
Bonds
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension-related
OPEB-related

Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for business improvement district
Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental
Activities

Other Total
Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Funds Funds Service Funds

6,391,045$      37,363,746$    24,219,488$    

98,033             1,298,327        -                      
-                      844,321           89,241             

-                      133,381           -                      
6,489,078        39,639,775      24,308,729      

-                      900,000           -                      
3,551,961        96,318,241      4,326,820        
3,551,961        97,218,241      4,326,820        

10,041,039      136,858,016    28,635,549      

97,580             1,020,839        1,600,832        
50,591             328,159           544,200           

148,171           1,348,998        2,145,032        

658,405           2,732,864        185,061           
4,913               626,950           -                      

-                      123,768           1,665               
126,157           126,592           -                      

-                      -                      8,859,930        
-                      45,195             -                      
-                      -                      2,062,555        
-                      -                      48,976             
-                      12,792             40,615             

7,096               711,630           133,224           
796,571           4,379,791        11,332,026      

900,000           900,000           -                      
-                      174,909           -                      
-                      -                      6,495,000        
-                      -                      709,500           
-                      -                      22,974             
-                      13,054             63,374             

166,275           7,427,241        3,121,565        
57,085             574,646           911,717           
43,300             280,860           465,758           

1,166,660        9,370,710        11,789,888      
1,963,231        13,750,501      23,121,914      

8,999               90,586             143,721           
11,536             74,825             124,084           
20,535             165,411           267,805           

3,551,961        89,903,527      4,151,741        
-                      373,149           -                      

4,653,483        34,014,426      3,239,121        
8,205,444$      124,291,102$  7,390,862$      

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 9
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 14,358,977$    3,264,171$      4,283,938$      
Interdepartmental charges for services -                      -                      -                      
Miscellaneous 17,188             10,340             17,579             

Total operating revenues 14,376,165      3,274,511        4,301,517        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 1,140,883        485,934           155,520           
Employee benefits 513,497           176,074           62,231             
Contract for professional services 6,366,380        114,404           538,389           
Materials and services 1,019,346        361,365           498,372           
Utilities 214,434           163,561           101,837           
Adminstrative service charges 1,462,720        708,597           489,944           
Internal services 11,733             -                      57,680             
Leases and rents -                      -                      -                      
Claims -                      -                      -                      
Depreciation/amortization 630,596           333,410           330,593           

Total operating expenses 11,359,589      2,343,345        2,234,566        

Operating income (loss) 3,016,576        931,166           2,066,951        

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue 398,063           49,969             (19,268)            
Interest expense (32,995)            (14,906)            (120,050)          
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets -                      -                      -                      

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 365,068           35,063             (139,318)          

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 3,381,644        966,229           1,927,633        

Transfers in -                      -                      -                      
Transfers out -                      -                      (100,700)          

Change in net position 3,381,644        966,229           1,826,933        

Net position-beginning 69,497,042      25,766,722      14,535,314      

Restatements 56,146             29,972             25,656             

Net position-beginning 69,553,188      25,796,694      14,560,970      

Net position-ending 72,934,832$    26,762,923$    16,387,903$    

Business-Type Activities

 Water  Wastewater  Parking 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 10
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Interdepartmental charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contract for professional services
Materials and services
Utilities
Adminstrative service charges
Internal services
Leases and rents
Claims
Depreciation/amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position-beginning

Restatements

Net position-beginning

Net position-ending

 Governmental 
Activities 

Other Total
Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Funds Funds Service Funds

2,658,920$      24,566,006$    -$                    
-                      -                      17,380,692      

2,146               47,253             33,532             
2,661,066        24,613,259      17,414,224      

150,289           1,932,626        2,616,304        
64,762             816,564           1,092,972        

1,099,343        8,118,516        1,606,930        
208,778           2,087,861        2,769,080        
56,968             536,800           132,268           

253,448           2,914,709        -                      
-                      69,413             -                      

582,075           582,075           -                      
-                      -                      9,135,160        

143,148           1,437,747        809,800           
2,558,811        18,496,311      18,162,514      

102,255           6,116,948        (748,290)          

(21,988)            406,776           -                      
(4,215)              (172,166)          (81,282)            

-                      -                      45,573             
(26,203)            234,610           (35,709)            

76,052             6,351,558        (783,999)          

1,038,479        1,038,479        -                      
(389,871)          (490,571)          -                      

724,660           6,899,466        (783,999)          

7,480,784        117,279,862    7,997,129        

-                      111,774           177,732           

7,480,784        117,391,636    8,174,861        

8,205,444$      124,291,102$  7,390,862$      

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 11
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 14,375,106$    3,276,242$      4,304,131$      
Receipts from interfund charges -                       -                       -                       
Payments to suppliers and service providers (9,269,761)       (1,540,138)       (2,092,088)       
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (1,246,529)       (616,598)          (203,435)          

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 3,858,816        1,119,506        2,008,608        

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds -                       -                       -                       
Transfers to other funds -                       -                       (100,700)          
Principal paid on pension obligation bonds (41,411)            (17,070)            (5,756)              
Interest paid on pension obligation bonds (24,694)            (10,183)            (3,437)              
Payments to other funds on interfund borrowings -                       -                       (900,000)          
Payments from other funds on interfund borrowings

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities (66,105)            (27,253)            (1,009,893)       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (14,426,481)     (470,980)          -                       
Principal paid on capital debt (140,753)          (82,237)            (380,000)          
Interest paid on capital debt (25,961)            (15,969)            (261,994)          
Proceeds from sales of assets -                       -                       -                       

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (14,593,195)     (569,186)          (641,994)          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 398,062           49,969             (19,268)            

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 398,062           49,969             (19,268)            

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (10,402,422)     573,036           337,453           

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning 21,980,514      15,600,837      3,016,664        

Cash and cash equivalents-ending 11,578,092$    16,173,873$    3,354,117$      

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Cash and investments 11,566,530$    16,168,185$    3,237,986$      
Cash with fiscal agent 11,562             5,688               116,131           

Total cash and cash equivalents 11,578,092$    16,173,873$    3,354,117$      

Business-Type Activities

 Water  Wastewater  Parking 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 12
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Business-Type Activities

 Water  Wastewater  Parking 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) 3,016,576$      931,166$         2,066,951$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation/amortization expense 630,596           333,410           330,593           
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,059)              1,731               2,614               
(Increase) decrease in inventories (462,915)          -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 261,857           (114,501)          (378,817)          
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 216,975           (77,710)            (27,049)            
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable -                       -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 103,389           -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments -                       -                       -                       
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 992,017           369,433           127,715           
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability 37,868             23,971             8,684               
Increase (decrease) in pension-related deferred inflows (914,710)          (334,208)          (117,089)          
Increase (decrease) in OPEB-related deferred inflows (21,778)            (13,786)            (4,994)              

Total adjustments 842,240           188,340           (58,343)            
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 3,858,816$      1,119,506$      2,008,608$      

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH NONCAPITAL, CAPITAL, AND
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Amortization on bond discount/(premium) 17,661$           8,688$             116,235$         
Subscription assets -                       38,836             -                       
Capital assets restatements 56,146             29,972             25,656             

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 13
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Receipts from interfund charges
Payments to suppliers and service providers
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Principal paid on pension obligation bonds
Interest paid on pension obligation bonds
Payments to other funds on interfund borrowings
Payments from other funds on interfund borrowings

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Proceeds from sales of assets

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning

Cash and cash equivalents-ending

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent

Total cash and cash equivalents

Governmental
Activities

Other
Enterprise Internal

Funds Totals Service Funds

2,497,071$      24,452,550$    -$                       
-                       -                       17,414,047       

(2,448,379)       (15,350,366)     (13,424,380)      
(191,865)          (2,258,427)       (3,308,281)        
(143,173)          6,843,757        681,386            

1,038,479        1,038,479        -                         
(389,871)          (490,571)          -                         

(7,063)              (71,300)            (132,610)           
(4,215)              (42,529)            (77,700)             

-                       (900,000)          -                         
900,000           900,000           -                         

1,537,330        434,079           (210,310)           

(40,530)            (14,937,991)     (1,247,858)        
-                       (602,990)          (135,051)           
-                       (303,924)          (4,217)               
-                       -                       47,875               

(40,530)            (15,844,905)     (1,339,251)        

(21,988)            406,775           -                         
(21,988)            406,775           -                         

1,331,639        (8,160,294)       (868,175)           

5,059,406        45,657,421      25,087,666       

6,391,045$      37,497,127$    24,219,491$     

6,391,045$      37,363,746$    24,219,488$     
-                       133,381           -                         

6,391,045$      37,497,127$    24,219,488$     

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 14
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation/amortization expense
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability
Increase (decrease) in pension-related deferred inflows
Increase (decrease) in OPEB-related deferred inflows

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH NONCAPITAL, CAPITAL, AND
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Amortization on bond discount/(premium)
Subscription assets
Capital assets restatements

Governmental
Activities

Other
Enterprise Internal

Funds Totals Service Funds

Business-Type Activities

102,255$         6,116,948$      (748,290)$         

143,148           1,437,747        809,800            
(66,235)            (62,949)            1,450                 

-                       (462,915)          11,399               
(216,635)          (448,096)          (107,381)           

(31,132)            81,084             (11,020)             
(97,760)            (97,760)            -                         

-                       -                       (1,627)               
-                       103,389           (29,357)             
-                       -                       352,317            

163,925           1,653,090        2,917,493         
12,855             83,378             138,266            

(146,202)          (1,512,209)       (2,572,145)        
(7,392)              (47,950)            (79,519)             

(245,428)          726,809           1,429,676         
(143,173)$        6,843,757$      681,386$          

-$                     142,584$         -$                       
-                       38,836             190,627            
-                       111,774           177,732            

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 15
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Custodial 
Fund

Special 
Assessment
Redemption

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,468,495$          
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 1,151,747            
Receivables:

Accounts 48,088                 
Total assets 2,668,330            

LIABILITIES
Payable to bondholders 2,668,330            

Total liabilities 2,668,330            

NET POSITION
Restricted for bondholders -                           

Total net position -$                         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2023

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 16
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Custodial 
Fund

Special 
Assessment 
Redemption

ADDITIONS
Special assessments 1,649,848$          
Interest income 33,358                 

Total additions 1,683,206            

DEDUCTIONS
Professional services 7,880                   
Principal payment 1,595,000            
Interest expenses 80,326                 

Total deductions 1,683,206            

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position -                           

Net position-beginning 2,980,603            

Restatements (2,980,603)           

Net position-beginning restated -                           

Net position-ending -$                         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 17
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Internal Service Funds 
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Custodial Funds

Net Investment in capital assets - 

Restricted Net Position - 

Unrestricted Net Position - 
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General Fund
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Wastewater Fund

Parking Fund
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Sensitivity of the Total Pension Liability to Change in the Discount Rate 

Pension Expense 

Plan Description 

Benefits Provided 

Employees Covered 

Total Pension Liability 

56

DRAFT



Actuarial Assumptions 
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 62,692,042$    62,692,042$    66,225,824$    3,533,782$      
Licenses and permits 3,498,440        3,498,440        3,880,050        381,610           
Intergovernmental 777,158           899,505           453,018           (446,487)          
Charges for services 11,552,737      11,612,737      12,051,059      438,322           
Use of money and property 4,176,450        4,176,450        4,846,538        670,088           
Fines and forfeitures 2,207,000        2,207,000        2,612,258        405,258           
Miscellaneous 2,079,880        2,159,880        1,451,967        (707,913)          

Total revenues 86,983,707      87,246,054      91,520,714      4,274,660        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 16,196,456      16,725,616      16,379,649      345,967           
Public safety 44,855,834      45,695,395      44,939,777      755,618           
Culture and recreation 8,443,265        8,493,472        7,656,724        836,748           
Public works 10,327,607      10,964,020      8,974,132        1,989,888        

Capital outlay -                      -                      539,119           (539,119)          
Debt service:

Principal 3,558,389        3,558,389        4,560,850        (1,002,461)       
Interest 2,075,546        2,075,546        2,093,270        (17,724)            
Pass-through agreement payments 1,600               1,600               1,600               -                      

Total expenditures 85,458,697      87,514,038      85,145,121      2,368,917        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 1,525,010        (267,984)          6,375,593        6,643,577        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                      -                      490,571           490,571           
Leases issued -                      -                      534,169           534,169           
Transfers out (13,134)            (13,134)            (8,475,088)       (8,461,954)       

Total other financing sources (uses) (13,134)            (13,134)            (7,450,348)       (7,437,214)       

Net change in fund balance 1,511,876$      (281,118)$        (1,074,755)       (793,637)$        

Fund balance-beginning 39,817,477      

Fund balance-ending 38,742,722$    

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 70
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Miscellaneous Plan 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset) and Related Ratios
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Measurement Period 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service Cost 1,897,933$     1,906,947$     2,116,750$     2,582,619$     2,639,954$     
Interest 6,036,548       6,365,282       6,725,647       6,931,655       7,282,132       
Changes of Benefits Terms -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Difference Between expected and Actual Experience -                      (1,610,461)      (125,272)         (2,203,443)      (577,483)         
Changes in Assumptions -                      (450,327)         -                      5,953,464       11,137            
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of employee Contributions (2,930,477)      (3,387,918)      (3,694,517)      (3,897,657)      (4,251,920)      
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 5,004,004       2,823,523       5,022,608       9,366,638       5,103,820       
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 81,003,568     86,007,572     88,831,095     93,853,703     103,220,341   
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 86,007,572$   88,831,095$   93,853,703$   103,220,341$ 108,324,161$ 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contribution - Employer 1,512,406$     1,619,438$     1,856,633$     2,139,788$     2,257,840$     
Contribution - Employee 911,689          986,936          1,110,014       1,142,808       1,194,936       
Net Investment Income 10,722,182     1,618,145       357,760          8,057,534       6,733,944       
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (2,930,477)      (3,387,918)      (3,694,517)      (3,897,657)      (4,251,920)      
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement -                      -                      (388)                -                      (198)                
Administrative Expense -                      (82,036)           (44,409)           (106,973)         (124,333)         
Other Miscellaneous Income/(Expense) (A) -                      -                      -                      -                      (236,111)         
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 10,215,800     754,565          (414,907)         7,335,500       5,574,158       
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 61,897,924     72,113,724     72,868,289     72,453,382     79,788,882     
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 72,113,724$   72,868,289$   72,453,382$   79,788,882$   85,363,040$   

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Assets) - Ending (a) - (b) 13,893,848$   15,962,806$   21,400,321$   23,431,459$   22,961,121$   

83.85% 82.03% 77.20% 77.30% 78.80%

Covered Payroll 13,348,365$   13,348,365$   14,974,179$   16,051,083$   16,557,666$   

104.09% 119.59% 142.91% 145.98% 138.67%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:  

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of 
implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total 
Pension Liability

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of Covered 
Payroll

Changes of Assumptions:

(A) During Fiscal Year 2017-18, as a result of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pensions (GASB 75), CalPERS reported its proportionate share of activity related to
postemployment benefits for participation in the State of California’s agent OPEB plan. Accordingly, CalPERS recorded a one-time expense as a result
of the adoption of GASB 75. Additionally, CalPERS employees participate in various State of California agent pension plans and during Fiscal Year
2017-18, CalPERS recorded a correction to previously reported financial statements to properly reflect its proportionate share of activity related to
pensions in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68). 

The figures above generally include any liability impact that may have resulted from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or before the
Measurement Date. However, offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred after the Valuation Date are not
included in the figures above, unless the liability is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric)
returns over the long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition,
demographic assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of
Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement dates 2015
through 2016, and 7.50% for measurement date 2014.
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2019 2020 2021 2022

2,657,779$     2,737,868$     2,650,267$     2,943,841$     
7,803,956       8,237,478       8,598,669       8,978,056       

-                      -                      -                      1,093,755       
1,833,076       261,490          (820,321)         (1,315,243)      

-                      -                      -                      4,573,133       
(4,679,793)      (4,720,240)      (5,398,971)      (6,384,471)      
7,615,018       6,516,596       5,029,644       9,889,071       

108,324,161   115,939,179   122,455,775   127,485,419   
115,939,179$ 122,455,775$ 127,485,419$ 137,374,490$ 

2,699,124$     3,088,142$     31,975,816$   1,624,870$     
1,183,069       1,148,119       1,231,319       1,286,707       
5,590,075       4,500,278       22,191,353     (10,719,243)    

(4,679,793)      (4,720,240)      (5,398,971)      (6,384,471)      
-                      -                      -                      -                      

(60,918)           (127,012)         (93,884)           (89,635)           
199                 -                      -                      -                      

4,731,756       3,889,287       49,905,633     (14,281,772)    
85,363,040     90,094,796     93,984,083     143,889,716   
90,094,796$   93,984,083$   143,889,716$ 129,607,944$ 

25,844,383$   28,471,692$   (16,404,297)$  7,766,546$     

77.71% 76.75% 112.87% 94.35%

16,866,425$   17,472,037$   17,209,527$   17,388,313$   

153.23% 162.96% -95.32% 44.67%
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Miscellaneous Plan 
Schedule of Plan Contributions
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution 1,512,406$    1,619,438$    1,856,633$    2,139,788$    2,257,840$    
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (1,512,406)     (1,619,438)     (1,856,633)     (2,139,788)     (2,257,840)     
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Covered Payroll 12,741,228$  13,348,365$  14,974,179$  16,051,083$  16,557,666$  

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 11.87% 12.13% 12.40% 13.33% 13.64%

Note to Schedule:

Methods and  assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Single and Agent Employers Entry age normal
Amortization method Level Percent of Payroll

30 Years as of the Valuation Date with 5 year ramp up/down
Assets valuation method Fair Value of Assets
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment rate of return

Retirement age

Mortality

7.00% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative Expenses, including
Inflation.
The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study
for the period from 1997 to 2015.

The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for
the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and Post-Retirement mortality rates
include 15 years of projected mortality improvements using 90% of Scale MP-2016
published by the Society of Actuaries.

2.500%
Varies by Entry Age and Service

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of implementation,
therefore only ten years are shown.

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal year 2022-23 were from the June 30, 2020 public
agency valuations.
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2,699,124$    3,088,142$    3,428,883$      1,624,870$    1,918,178$    
(2,699,124)     (3,088,142)     (31,975,816)    (1,624,870)     (1,918,178)     

-$                   -$                   (28,546,933)$  -$                   -$                   

16,866,425$  17,472,037$  17,209,527$    17,388,313$  16,748,931$  

16.00% 17.67% 185.80% 9.34% 11.45%
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Safety Plan
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 

Measurement Date 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Safety Plan
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 0.482924% 0.816657% 0.854514% 0.738007% 0.884355%

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 30,049,799$  33,649,892$  44,229,612$  51,004,452$  51,890,006$  

Covered Payroll 11,899,053$  12,509,404$  13,396,233$  13,476,008$  13,377,912$  

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as 
Percentage of Covered Payroll 252.54% 269.00% 330.16% 378.48% 387.88%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability 78.30% 78.30% 74.10% 73.30% 75.30%

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit Changes:

Changes of Assumptions:

There were no changes to benefit terms that applied to all members of the Public Agency Pool. However, individual employers in the Plan may
have provided a benefit improvement to their employees such as Golden Handshakes, service purchases, and other prior service costs.
Employers that have done so may need to report this information as a separate liability in their financial statement as CalPERS considers such
amounts to be separately financed employer-specific liabilities. These employers should consult with their auditors. Additionally, the figures
above do not include any liability impact that occurred after the June 30, 2021 valuation date, unless the liability impact is deemed to be
material to the Public Agency Pool.

Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022 measurement date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected
pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project
compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected
portfolio return. In addition, demographic assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions.

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of implementation,
therefore only nine years are shown.
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2019 2020 2021 2022

0.888476% 0.927775% -1.011101% 0.067973%

55,463,474$  61,811,652$  (35,484,453)$ 7,851,465$    

13,238,294$  13,904,770$  13,731,032$  13,651,265$  

418.96% 444.54% -258.43% 57.51%

73.85% 71.86% 115.64% 96.68%
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Safety Plan
Schedule of Plan Contributions 
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Safety Plan
Actuarially Determined Contribution 3,200,572$    3,437,160$    4,000,319$    4,035,127$    4,413,119$    
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (3,200,572)    (3,437,160)    (4,000,319)    (4,035,127)    (4,413,119)    
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Covered Payroll 11,899,053$  12,509,404$  13,396,233$  13,476,008$  13,377,912$  

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 26.90% 27.48% 29.86% 29.94% 32.99%

Note to Schedule:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Single and Agent Employers Entry age normal
Amortization method Level Percent of Payroll

20 Years as of the Valuation Date 
Assets valuation method Market value
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment rate of return
Retirement age 55 years
Mortality Scale MP 2017

2.500%
2.75%
7.0% net of pension plan investment and administrative expense, 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal year 2022-23 were from the June 30, 2020 public
agency valuations.

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of implementation,
therefore only ten years are shown.
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

5,071,642$    5,997,853$    6,572,770$    2,798,477$    3,085,036$    
(5,071,642)    (5,997,853)    68,788,953    (2,798,477)    (3,085,036)    

-$                  -$                  75,361,723$  -$                  -$                  

13,238,294$  13,904,770$  13,731,032$  13,651,265$  14,532,619$  

38.31% 43.14% -500.97% 20.50% 21.23%
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Pension Plan - Supplemental Retirement Plan 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
As of June 30, for the last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Total pension liability:
Interest 4,535$    3,868$    4,465$    (552)$      4,837$     
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (20,118)   (20,519)   (21,728)   (21,340)   (21,690)    
Experience losses/(gains) (6,296)     16,651    9,609      35,649    8,685       
Changes in assumptions -              -              -              -              -               

Net change in total pension liability (21,879)   -              (7,654)     13,757    (8,168)      
Total pension liability, beginning of year 133,183  111,304  111,304  103,650  117,407   

Total pension liability, end of year 111,304  111,304  103,650  117,407  109,239   

Plan fiduciary net position:
Net investment income 4,535      3,868      4,465      (552)        496          
Contribution from employer -              -              -              -              -               
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (20,118)   (20,519)   (21,728)   (21,340)   (21,690)    

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (15,583)   (16,651)   (17,263)   (21,892)   (21,194)    

Total fiduciary net position, beginning of year 118,255  102,672  86,021    68,758    46,866     
Restatement 

Total fiduciary net position, end of year 102,672  86,021    68,758    46,866    25,672     

Total pension liability, end of fiscal year 8,632$    25,283$  34,892$  70,541$  83,567$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 92.24% 77.28% 66.34% 39.92% 23.50%

The Supplement Retirement Plan is dormant.

Covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

In fiscal year 2022-23, the discount rate was changed from 3.54% to 3.65%. 

2018 2015 2016 2017

The fiduciary net position has been restated since the assets held were not in a trust fund as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, but
were pulled with the City's cash and investments.

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 67 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only ten years are shown.

2014

Changes of Assumptions:
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4,045$     4,057$      1,787$      1,143$      1,667$      
(22,125)    (22,327)     (14,382)     (12,889)     (13,359)     
18,576     6,826        (34,482)     (2,564)       6,173        
2,027       5,916        62             7,476        (2,972)       

2,523       (5,528)       (47,015)     (6,834)       (8,491)       
109,239   111,762    106,234    59,219      52,385      

111,762   106,234    59,219      52,385      43,894      

1,024       -               -               -               -               
27,773     22,327      14,382      12,889      13,359      

(22,125)    (22,327)     (14,382)     (12,889)     (13,359)     

6,672       -               -               -               -               

25,672     32,344      -               -               -               
(32,344)     -               -               -               

32,344     -               -               -               -               

79,418$   106,234$  59,219$    52,385$    43,894$    

28.94% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2022 20232019 20212020
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Pension Plan - Supplemental Retirement Plan 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Employer contributions:
Actuarial determined contributions -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Actual contributions -              -              -              -              -              

Deficiency/(Excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

The Supplement Retirement Plan is dormant.

Actual contributions as a percentage of actuarial determined contributions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

 2014  2015  2016 

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 67 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only ten years are shown.

 2017  2018 
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-$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
-              -              -              (12,889)   (13,359)   

-$            -$            -$            12,889$  13,359$  

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

20232022202120202019
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Pension Plan - Supplemental Retirement Plan 
Schedule of Investment Returns
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 4.40% 4.40% 3.60% 3.49% 4.12%

 2014  2015  2016 

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 67 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only ten years are shown.

 2017  2018 
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3.50% 2.20% 2.16% 3.54% 3.65%

2023 2022  2021  2020  2019 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Pension Plan - Single Highest Year Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 

Total pension liability:
Interest 12,194$  9,588$    13,610$ (1,639)$    13,871$   
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (49,893)   (50,872)   (51,598)  (52,928)    (53,805)    
Experience losses/(gains) (20,492)   41,284    19,167   94,614     (12,652)    
Changes in assumptions -              -              -             -               -               

Net change in total pension liability (58,191)   -              (18,821)  40,047     (52,586)    
Total pension liability, beginning of year 373,634  315,443  315,443 296,622   336,669   

Total pension liability, end of year 315,443  315,443  296,622 336,669   284,083   

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contribution from employer -              -              -             -               -               
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (49,893)   (50,872)   (51,598)  (52,928)    (53,805)    

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (37,699)   (41,284)   (37,988)  (54,567)    (52,189)    

Total fiduciary net position, beginning of year 315,899  278,200  236,916 198,928   144,361   
Restatement -              -              -             -               -               

Total fiduciary net position, end of year 278,200  236,916  198,928 144,361   92,172     

Total pension liability, end of fiscal year 37,243$  78,527$  97,694$ 192,308$ 191,911$ 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 88.19% 75.11% 67.06% 42.88% 32.45%

The Single Highest Year Plan is dormant.

Covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

In fiscal year 2022-23, the discount rate was changed from 3.54% to 3.65%. 

 2017  2018 

The fiduciary net position has been restated since the assets held were not in a trust fund as defined by GASB Statement No. 68,
but were pulled with the City's cash and investments.

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 67 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only ten years are shown.

 2014 

Changes of Assumptions:

 2015  2016 
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10,663$   8,785$     5,975$       2,421$       3,756$       
(50,694)    (51,473)    (25,050)      (20,304)      (20,655)      
41,951     17,838     (138,309)    15,842       13,906       

6,053       15,460     207            (5,433)        (6,696)        

7,973       (9,390)      (157,177)    (7,474)        (9,689)        
284,083   292,056   282,666     125,489     118,015     

292,056   282,666   125,489     118,015     108,326     

72,227     51,473     25,050       20,304       20,655       
(50,694)    (51,473)    (25,050)      (20,304)      (20,655)      

26,222     -               -                 -                 -                 

92,172     118,394   -                 -                 -                 
-               (118,394)  -                 -                 -                 

118,394   -               -                 -                 -                 

173,662$ 282,666$ 125,489$   118,015$   108,326$   

40.54% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2020 20232019 20222021
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Pension Plan - Single Highest Year Plan
Schedule of Employer Contributions 
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Employer contributions:
Actuarial determined contributions -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
Actual contributions -              -              -              -              -              

Deficiency/(Excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

The Single Highest Year Plan is dormant.

Actual contributions as a percentage of actuarial determined contributions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

 2017  2018 

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 67 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only ten years are shown.

 2014  2015  2016 
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-$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
-              -              -              (20,304)   (20,655)   

-$            -$            -$            20,304$  20,655$  

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2019 2023202220212020
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Pension Plan - Single Highest Year Plan
Schedule of Investment Returns 
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 4.40% 4.40% 3.60% 3.49% 4.12%

2017 2018

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 67 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2014 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only ten years are shown.

2014 2015 2016
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3.50% 2.20% 2.16% 3.54% 3.65%

2019 2023202220212020
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) and Related Ratios
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 

Measurement Date 2017 2018 2019

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 153,484$           157,705$           162,042$           
Interest on the total OPEB liability 373,003             389,029             405,961             
Expected minus actual benefit payments -                        -                        14,816               
Experience gains/(losses) -                        -                        (217,943)           
Changes in assumptions -                        -                        11,785,934        
Benefit payments (292,220)           (276,109)           (315,517)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 234,267       270,625       11,835,293  

Total OPEB liability - beginning 5,809,993          6,044,260          6,314,885          

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 6,044,260          6,314,885          18,150,178        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions -                        -                        -                        
Expected investment income -                        -                        -                        
Net investment income 696,310             637,587             658,010             
Investment gains/(loss) -                        (17,259)             65,900               
Benefit payments (292,220)           (276,109)           (315,517)           
Administrative expense (5,052)               (18,413)             (2,217)               

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 399,038       325,806       406,176       

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 9,557,249          9,956,287          10,282,093        

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 9,956,287          10,282,093        10,688,269        
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) - ending (a) - (b) (3,912,027)$      (3,967,208)$      7,461,909$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 164.7% 162.8% 58.9%

Covered employee payroll 27,942,810$      28,350,135$      28,955,206$      

Net OPEB liability/(asset) as a percentage of covered employee payroll -14.00% -13.99% 25.77%

Notes to Schedule:

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Measurement year 2017
was the first year of implementation.  Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.
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2020 2021 2022

860,600$           912,539$           680,762$           
726,498             741,118             721,654             

-                        8,110                 (5,588)               
(67,563)             (2,139,728)        -                        
301,994             (47,483)             (40,688)             

(768,497)           (827,450)           (826,360)           

1,053,032    (1,352,894)  529,780       

18,150,178        19,203,210        17,850,316        

19,203,210        17,850,316        18,380,096        

458,552             500,355             826,360             
-                        701,127             799,359             

579,074             1,469,219          -                        
-                        -                        (2,402,230)        

(768,497)           (827,450)           (826,360)           
(5,285)               (4,002)               (3,246)               

263,844       1,839,249    (1,606,117)  

10,688,269        10,952,113        12,791,362        

10,952,113        12,791,362        11,185,245        
8,251,097$        5,058,954$        7,194,851$        

57.0% 71.7% 60.9%

30,039,928$      31,108,248$      31,281,530$      

27.47% 16.26% 23.00%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 92
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Schedule of Plan Contributions
As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2018 2019 2020

-$                   -$                   -$                   
-                     -                     -                     
-$                   -$                   -$                   

28,350,135$  28,955,206$  30,039,928$  

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 4.08% per year net of expenses
Inflation 2.50% per year
Salary Increase 2.75% per year
Healthcare Trend 4.0% per year
Mortality Police - 2017 CalPERS Mortality for Safety Employees

Fire Fighters - 2017 CalPERS Mortality for Safety Employees
Miscellaneous - 2017 CalPERS Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees

Retirement Rates Police Management:
Hired 2013 and later: 2017 CalPERS 2.7%@57 Rates for Police Employees

Police Officers:
Hired 2013 and later: 2017 CalPERS 2.7%@57 Rates for Police Employees
Hired 2012 and earlier: 2017 CalPERS 3.0%@50 Rates for Police Employees

Firefighters:
Hired 2013 and later: 2017 CalPERS 2.7%@57 Rates for Fire Employees
Hired 2012 and earlier: 2017 CalPERS 3.0%@55 Rates for Fire Employees

General Employees and Management: 
Hired 2012 and earlier: 2017 CalPERS 2.0%@55 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees
Hired 2013 and later: 2017 CalPERS 2.0%@62 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees

Hired 2012 and earlier: 2017 CalPERS 3.0%@50 Rates for Police 

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.  Fiscal Year 2018 was the 
first year of implementation.  Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contribution for Fiscal Year 2023 were from the
December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 93
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2021 2022 2023

-$                   -$                   -$                   
-                     -                     -                     
-$                   -$                   -$                   

31,108,248$  31,281,530$  33,042,483$  

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

#

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 94
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash and investments 143,012$          3,527,935$       152,124$          474,579$          
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible):

Accounts 9,187                -                        -                        -                        
Due from other governments -                        195,799            -                        -                        
Grants -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total assets 152,199$          3,723,734$       152,124$          474,579$          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 79,239$            318,051$          -$                      77,873$            
Accrued liabilities -                        56,346              -                        -                        
Deposits payable -                        -                        -                        -                        
Unearned revenues -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total liabilities 79,239              374,397            -                        77,873              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues -                        32,314              -                        -                        

Total deferred inflows of resources -                        32,314              -                        -                        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted 72,960              3,317,023         152,124            396,706            
Committed -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total fund balances (deficits) 72,960              3,317,023         152,124            396,706            

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits) 152,199$          3,723,734$       152,124$          474,579$          

 Street Lighting 
and Landscape  Gas Tax 

 Asset 
Forfeiture 

 Public Safety 
Grants 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible):

Accounts
Due from other governments
Grants

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Unearned revenues

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits)

909,705$          2,265,295$       226,396$          1,660,102$       

222                   -                        -                        -                        
-                        1,462,652         11,640              -                        
-                        486,679            -                        900,660            

909,927$          4,214,626$       238,036$          2,560,762$       

3,686$              155,865$          -$                      315,501$          
-                        4,618                -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        

3,686                160,483            -                        315,501            

-                        1,462,652         -                        900,660            
-                        1,462,652         -                        900,660            

906,241            2,591,491         238,036            1,344,601         
-                        -                        -                        -                        

906,241            2,591,491         238,036            1,344,601         

909,927$          4,214,626$       238,036$          2,560,762$       

 Proposition A  Proposition C  AB 2766  Measure R 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible):

Accounts
Due from other governments
Grants

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Unearned revenues

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits)

2,011,260$       1,842,581$       2,417,424$       2,175,137$       

-                        -                        -                        -                        
247,015            -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        
2,258,275$       1,842,581$       2,417,424$       2,175,137$       

181,913$          103,689$          234,788$          300$                 
7,011                -                        311,626            150,357            

-                        -                        -                        1,741                
-                        873,543            -                        -                        

188,924            977,232            546,414            152,398            

247,015            -                        -                        -                        
247,015            -                        -                        -                        

1,822,336         865,349            -                        2,022,739         
-                        -                        1,871,010         -                        

1,822,336         865,349            1,871,010         2,022,739         

2,258,275$       1,842,581$       2,417,424$       2,175,137$       

 Measure M  Measure W 
 Bond 

Construction 

 Underground 
Assessment 

District 

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds

101

DRAFT



CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible):

Accounts
Due from other governments
Grants

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Unearned revenues

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances (deficits)

Total
Nonmajor

Funds

17,805,550$     

9,409                
1,917,106         
1,387,339         

21,119,404$     

1,470,905$       
529,958            

1,741                
873,543            

2,876,147         

2,642,641         
2,642,641         

13,729,606       
1,871,010         

15,600,616       

21,119,404$     
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

 
REVENUES

Taxes 377,889$          -$                      -$                      -$                      
Intergovernmental -                        1,724,923         36,057              165,271            
Charges for services -                        -                        -                        -                        
Use of money and property 684                   (18,403)             303                   (387)                  
Miscellaneous -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total revenues 378,573            1,706,520         36,360              164,884            

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety -                        -                        32,498              169,364            
Culture and recreation -                        -                        -                        -                        
Public works 556,001            69,789              -                        -                        

Capital outlay -                        947,028            -                        -                        
Debt service:

Principal -                        -                        -                        -                        
Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total expenditures 556,001            1,016,817         32,498              169,364            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (177,428)           689,703            3,862                (4,480)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 149,024            -                        -                        -                        
Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) 149,024            -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances (28,404)             689,703            3,862                (4,480)               

Fund balances (deficit)-beginning 101,364            2,627,320         148,262            401,186            

Fund balances (deficit)-ending 72,960$            3,317,023$       152,124$          396,706$          

 Street Lighting 
and Landscape  Gas Tax 

 Asset 
Forfeiture 

 Public Safety 
Grants 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

 
REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit)-beginning

Fund balances (deficit)-ending

921,489$          764,349$          -$                      573,096$          
-                        2,368,814         57,603              91,143              

3,040                -                        -                        -                        
(5,233)               (47,387)             (831)                  1,342                

11                     -                        -                        3,329                
919,307            3,085,776         56,772              668,910            

-                        -                        -                        -                        
670,111            -                        -                        -                        

-                        116,501            617                   94,735              
-                        1,831,324         -                        1,251,084         

20,283              -                        -                        -                        
11,199              -                        -                        -                        

701,593            1,947,825         617                   1,345,819         

217,714            1,137,951         56,155              (676,909)           

-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        

217,714            1,137,951         56,155              (676,909)           

688,527            1,453,540         181,881            2,021,510         

906,241$          2,591,491$       238,036$          1,344,601$       

 Proposition C  AB 2766  Measure R  Proposition A 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

 
REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit)-beginning

Fund balances (deficit)-ending

648,295$          409,629$          -$                      -$                      
106,437            529,972            -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        
(15,587)             (29,019)             65,528              30,573              

-                        -                        -                        -                        
739,145            910,582            65,528              30,573              

-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        

74,922              55,113              -                        130,137            
443,717            515,306            4,523,278         -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                        

518,639            570,419            4,523,278         130,137            

220,506            340,163            (4,457,750)        (99,564)             

-                        -                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        (23,203)             -                        
-                        -                        (23,203)             -                        

220,506            340,163            (4,480,953)        (99,564)             

1,601,830         525,186            6,351,963         2,122,303         

1,822,336$       865,349$          1,871,010$       2,022,739$       

 Bond 
Construction 

 Underground 
Assessment 

District  Measure M  Measure W 

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

 
REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit)-beginning

Fund balances (deficit)-ending

Total
Nonmajor

Funds

3,694,747$       
5,080,220         

3,040                
(18,417)             

3,340                
8,762,930         

201,862            
670,111            

1,097,815         
9,511,737         

20,283              
11,199              

11,513,007       

(2,750,077)        

149,024            
(23,203)             
125,821            

(2,624,256)        

18,224,872       

15,600,616$     
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 377,688$         377,688$         377,889$         201$                
Use of money and property -                       -                       684                  684                  

Total revenues 377,688           377,688           378,573           885                  

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 612,022           719,511           556,001           163,510           
Total expenditures 612,022           719,511           556,001           163,510           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (234,334)          (341,823)          (177,428)          164,395           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 13,134             13,134             149,024           135,890           

Total other financing sources (uses) 13,134             13,134             149,024           135,890           

Net change in fund balance (221,200)$        (328,689)$        (28,404)            300,285$         

Fund balance-beginning 101,364           

Fund balance-ending 72,960$           

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Street Lighting and Landscape
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,776,763$      2,026,850$      1,724,923$      (301,927)$        
Use of money and property 22,000             22,000             (18,403)            (40,403)            

Total revenues 1,798,763        2,048,850        1,706,520        (342,330)          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 60,138             60,138             69,789             (9,651)              
Capital outlay 1,515,000        3,689,197        947,028           2,742,169        

Total expenditures 1,575,138        3,749,335        1,016,817        2,732,518        

Net change in fund balance 223,625$         (1,700,485)$     689,703           2,390,188$      

Fund balance-beginning 2,627,320        

Fund balance-ending 3,317,023$      

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Gas Tax
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 40,000$           40,000$           36,057$           (3,943)$            
Use of money and property 1,800               1,800               303                  (1,497)              

Total revenues 41,800             41,800             36,360             (5,440)              

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety 107,750           107,750           32,498             75,252             
Total expenditures 107,750           107,750           32,498             75,252             

Net change in fund balance (65,950)$          (65,950)$          3,862               69,812$           

Fund balance-beginning 148,262           

Fund balance-ending 152,124$         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Asset Forfeiture
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 155,000$         155,000$         165,271$         10,271$           
Use of money and property 4,000               4,000               (387)                 (4,387)              

Total revenues 159,000           159,000           164,884           5,884               

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety 155,000           204,000           169,364           34,636             
Total expenditures 155,000           204,000           169,364           34,636             

Net change in fund balance 4,000$             (45,000)$          (4,480)              40,520$           

Fund balance-beginning 401,186           

Fund balance-ending 396,706$         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Public Safety Grants
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 855,303$         855,303$         921,489$         66,186$           
Charges for services 7,200               7,200               3,040               (4,160)              
Use of money and property 3,000               3,000               (5,233)              (8,233)              
Miscellaneous 17,500             17,500             11                    (17,489)            

Total revenues 883,003           883,003           919,307           36,304             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Culture and recreation 743,125           745,535           670,111           75,424             
Debt service:

Principal 23,458             23,458             20,283             3,175               
Interest and fiscal charges 14,063             14,063             11,199             2,864               

Total expenditures 780,646           783,056           701,593           81,463             

Net change in fund balance 102,357$         99,947$           217,714           117,767$         

Fund balance-beginning 688,527           

Fund balance-ending 906,241$         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Proposition A
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 709,451$         709,451$         764,349$         54,898$           
Intergovernmental -                       9,969,502        2,368,814        (7,600,688)       
Use of money and property 3,000               3,000               (47,387)            (50,387)            

Total revenues 712,451           10,681,953      3,085,776        (7,596,177)       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 60,138             60,138             116,501           (56,363)            
Capital outlay 1,200,000        10,774,508      1,831,324        8,943,184        

Total expenditures 1,260,138        10,834,646      1,947,825        8,886,821        

Net change in fund balance (547,687)$        (152,693)$        1,137,951        1,290,644$      

Fund balance-beginning 1,453,540        

Fund balance-ending 2,591,491$      

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Proposition C
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental 46,000$           46,000$           57,603$           11,603$           
Use of money and property 1,500               1,500               (831)                 (2,331)              

Total revenues 47,500             47,500             56,772             9,272               

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 673                  673                  617                  56                    
Total expenditures 673                  673                  617                  56                    

Net change in fund balance 46,827$           46,827$           56,155             9,328$             

Fund balance-beginning 181,881           

Fund balance-ending 238,036$         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
AB 2766
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 532,088$         532,088$         573,096$         41,008$           
Intergovernmental -                       1,380,000        91,143             (1,288,857)       
Use of money and property 15,000             15,000             1,342               (13,658)            
Miscellaneous -                       -                       3,329               3,329               

Total revenues 547,088           1,927,088        668,910           (1,258,178)       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 60,138             60,138             94,735             (34,597)            
Capital outlay 700,000           2,535,848        1,251,084        1,284,764        

Total expenditures 760,138           2,595,986        1,345,819        1,250,167        

Net change in fund balance (213,050)$        (668,898)$        (676,909)          (8,011)$            

Fund balance-beginning 2,021,510        

Fund balance-ending 1,344,601$      

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Measure R
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 603,033$         603,033$         648,295$         45,262$           
Intergovernmental 5,310,000        10,983,345      106,437           (10,876,908)     
Use of money and property 8,000               8,000               (15,587)            (23,587)            

Total revenues 5,921,033        11,594,378      739,145           (10,855,233)     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 60,138             60,138             74,922             (14,784)            
Capital outlay 5,810,000        12,813,334      443,717           12,369,617      

Total expenditures 5,870,138        12,873,472      518,639           12,354,833      

Net change in fund balance 50,895$           (1,279,094)$     220,506           1,499,600$      

Fund balance-beginning 1,601,830        

Fund balance-ending 1,822,336$      

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Measure M
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 410,000$         410,000$         409,629$         (371)$               
Intergovernmental 1,200,000        2,603,515        529,972           (2,073,543)       
Use of money and property 1,500               1,500               (29,019)            (30,519)            

Total revenues 1,611,500        3,015,015        910,582           (2,104,433)       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works -                       -                       55,113             (55,113)            
Capital outlay 1,200,000        2,603,515        515,306           2,088,209        

Total expenditures 1,200,000        2,603,515        570,419           2,033,096        

Net change in fund balance 411,500$         411,500$         340,163           (71,337)$          

Fund balance-beginning 525,186           

Fund balance-ending 865,349$         

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Measure W
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 765,000$         765,000$         895,413$         130,413$         
Licenses and permits 25,438             25,438             35,624             10,186             
Intergovernmental 100,000           1,192,846        97,601             (1,095,245)       
Charges for services 625,000           625,000           549,704           (75,296)            
Use of money and property -                       -                       1,920               1,920               
Fines and forfeitures 90,000             90,000             97,904             7,904               
Contributions -                       -                       2,137,630        2,137,630        

Total revenues 1,605,438        2,698,284        3,815,796        1,117,512        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 240,550           240,550           259,419           (18,869)            
Capital outlay 5,032,500        11,788,587      3,355,838        8,432,749        
Debt service:

Principal 685,000           685,000           685,000           -                       
Interest and fiscal charges 482,739           482,739           480,825           1,914               
Trustee fees and bond issuance cost 1,800               1,800               3,650               (1,850)              

Total expenditures 6,442,589        13,198,676      4,784,732        8,413,944        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (4,837,151)       (10,500,392)     (968,936)          9,531,456        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                       -                       7,310,788        7,310,788        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                       7,310,788        7,310,788        

Net change in fund balance (4,837,151)$     (10,500,392)$   6,341,852        16,842,244$    

Fund balance-beginning 5,872,836        

Fund balance-ending 12,214,688$    

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Capital Improvement
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                     -$                     65,528$           65,528$           

Total revenues -                       -                       65,528             65,528             

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -                       6,430,032        4,523,278        1,906,754        

Total expenditures -                       6,430,032        4,523,278        1,906,754        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures -                       (6,430,032)       (4,457,750)       1,972,282        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out -                       -                       (23,203)            (23,203)            

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                       (23,203)            (23,203)            

Net change in fund balance -$                     (6,430,032)$     (4,480,953)       1,949,079$      

Fund balance-beginning 6,351,963        

Fund balance-ending 1,871,010$      

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Bond Construction
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                     -$                     30,573$           30,573$           

Total revenues -                       -                       30,573             30,573             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public works 1,285,750        1,316,657        130,137           1,186,520        
Total expenditures 1,285,750        1,316,657        130,137           1,186,520        

Net change in fund balance (1,285,750)$     (1,316,657)$     (99,564)            1,217,093$      

Fund balance-beginning 2,122,303        

Fund balance-ending 2,022,739$      

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Underground Assessment District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Net Position
Other Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2023

Total Other
Enterprise

Funds
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments 3,263,728$      489,625$         2,637,692$      6,391,045$      
Receivables:

Accounts 98,033             -                      -                      98,033             
Total current assets 3,361,761        489,625           2,637,692        6,489,078        

Noncurrent:
Capital assets, net 3,551,961        -                      -                      3,551,961        

Total noncurrent assets 3,551,961        -                      -                      3,551,961        
Total assets 6,913,722        489,625           2,637,692        10,041,039      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 53,968             21,805             21,807             97,580             
OPEB-related 28,717             10,937             10,937             50,591             

Total deferred outflows of resources 82,685             32,742             32,744             148,171           

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 101,129           486,887           70,389             658,405           
Accrued liabilities 766                  1,227               2,920               4,913               
Deposits payable 126,157           -                      -                      126,157           
Bonds 4,066               1,515               1,515               7,096               

Total current liabilities 232,118           489,629           74,824             796,571           

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds -                      -                      900,000           900,000           
Bonds 95,273             35,502             35,500             166,275           
Net pension liability 32,146             12,469             12,470             57,085             
Net OPEB liability 24,578             9,361               9,361               43,300             

Total noncurrent liabilities 151,997           57,332             957,331           1,166,660        
Total liabilities 384,115           546,961           1,032,155        1,963,231        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 5,067               1,966               1,966               8,999               
OPEB-related 6,548               2,494               2,494               11,536             

Total deferred inflows of resources 11,615             4,460               4,460               20,535             

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,551,961        -                      -                      3,551,961        
Unrestricted 3,048,716        (29,054)            1,633,821        4,653,483        

Total net position 6,600,677$      (29,054)$          1,633,821$      8,205,444$      

 Stormwater 
 County 

Parking Lot 
 State Pier and 

Parking Lot 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Other Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total Other
Enterprise

Funds
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 763,875$         1,058,319$      836,726$         2,658,920$      
Miscellaneous 1,752               -                      394                  2,146               

Total operating revenues 765,627           1,058,319        837,120           2,661,066        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 86,139             32,076             32,074             150,289           
Employee benefits 36,704             14,030             14,028             64,762             
Contract for professional services 862,674           35,617             201,052           1,099,343        
Materials and services 47,029             165                  161,584           208,778           
Utilities 39,993             2,520               14,455             56,968             
Adminstrative services charges 178,645           34,275             40,528             253,448           
Leases and rents -                      582,075           -                      582,075           
Depreciation/amortization 143,148           -                      -                      143,148           

Total operating expenses 1,394,332        700,758           463,721           2,558,811        

Operating income (loss) (628,705)          357,561           373,399           102,255           

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue (18,263)            -                      (3,725)              (21,988)            
Interest expense (2,411)              (902)                 (902)                 (4,215)              

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (20,674)            (902)                 (4,627)              (26,203)            

Income (loss) before transfers (649,379)          356,659           368,772           76,052             

Transfers in 1,038,479        -                      -                      1,038,479        
Transfers out -                      (389,871)          -                      (389,871)          

Change in net position 389,100           (33,212)            368,772           724,660           

Net position-beginning 6,211,577        4,158               1,265,049        7,480,784        

Net position-ending 6,600,677$      (29,054)$          1,633,821$      8,205,444$      

 Stormwater 
 County 

Parking Lot 
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Parking Lot 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Other Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total Other
Enterprise

Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 601,632$         1,058,319$      837,120$         2,497,071$      
Payments to suppliers and service providers (1,277,656)       (776,427)          (394,296)          (2,448,379)       
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (108,412)          (41,728)            (41,725)            (191,865)          

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (784,436)          240,164           401,099           (143,173)          

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 1,038,479        -                       -                       1,038,479        
Transfers to other funds -                       (389,871)          -                       (389,871)          
Principal paid on pension obligation bonds (4,047)              (1,508)              (1,508)              (7,063)              
Interest paid on pension obligation bonds (2,411)              (902)                 (902)                 (4,215)              
Payments from other funds on interfund borrowings -                       -                       900,000           900,000           

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities 1,032,021        (392,281)          897,590           1,537,330        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (40,530)            -                       -                       (40,530)            
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (40,530)            -                       -                       (40,530)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments (18,263)            -                       (3,725)              (21,988)            

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (18,263)            -                       (3,725)              (21,988)            

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 188,792           (152,117)          1,294,964        1,331,639        

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning 3,074,936        641,742           1,342,728        5,059,406        

Cash and cash equivalents-ending 3,263,728$      489,625$         2,637,692$      6,391,045$      

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Cash and investments 3,263,728$      489,625$         2,637,692$      6,391,045$      

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) (628,705)$        357,561$         373,399$         102,255$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation/amortization expense 143,148           -                       -                       143,148           
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable (66,235)            -                       -                       (66,235)            
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (117,757)          (121,811)          22,933             (216,635)          
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (31,558)            36                    390                  (31,132)            
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable (97,760)            -                       -                       (97,760)            
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 93,364             35,281             35,280             163,925           
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability 7,297               2,779               2,779               12,855             
Increase (decrease) in pension-related deferred inflows (82,034)            (32,084)            (32,084)            (146,202)          
Increase (decrease) in OPEB-related deferred inflows (4,196)              (1,598)              (1,598)              (7,392)              

Total adjustments (155,731)          (117,397)          27,700             (245,428)          
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (784,436)$        240,164$         401,099$         (143,173)$        

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH NONCAPITAL, CAPITAL, AND
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

There was no non-cash investing, capital and financing activities during the fiscal year.

 Stormwater 
 County 

Parking Lot 
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2023

Total Internal
Service
Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 18,751,747$    1,652,549$      3,710,656$      104,536$         24,219,488$    
Inventories -                      -                      -                      89,241             89,241             

Total current assets 18,751,747      1,652,549        3,710,656        193,777           24,308,729      

Noncurrent:
Capital assets, net -                      91,205             4,164,525        71,090             4,326,820        

Total noncurrent assets -                      91,205             4,164,525        71,090             4,326,820        
Total assets 18,751,747      1,743,754        7,875,181        264,867           28,635,549      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 297,325           785,592           220,668           297,247           1,600,832        
OPEB-related 90,245             207,836           109,386           136,733           544,200           

Total deferred outflows of resources 387,570           993,428           330,054           433,980           2,145,032        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,387               73,697             24,485             78,492             185,061           
Accrued interest -                      1,252               413                  -                      1,665               
Worker's compensation claims 8,859,930        -                      -                      -                      8,859,930        
Claims and judgments 2,062,555        -                      -                      -                      2,062,555        
Leases -                      -                      -                      48,976             48,976             
Subscriptions -                      32,914             7,701               -                      40,615             
Bonds 21,382             66,713             19,085             26,044             133,224           

Total current liabilities 10,952,254      174,576           51,684             153,512           11,332,026      

Noncurrent liabilities:
Worker's compensation claims 6,495,000        -                      -                      -                      6,495,000        
Claims and judgments 709,500           -                      -                      -                      709,500           
Leases -                      -                      -                      22,974             22,974             
Subscriptions -                      33,941             29,433             -                      63,374             
Bonds 501,001           1,563,159        447,168           610,237           3,121,565        
Net pension liability 170,251           450,340           122,921           168,205           911,717           
Net OPEB liability 77,237             177,878           93,619             117,024           465,758           

Total noncurrent liabilities 7,952,989        2,225,318        693,141           918,440           11,789,888      
Total liabilities 18,905,243      2,399,894        744,825           1,071,952        23,121,914      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 26,838             70,991             19,377             26,515             143,721           
OPEB-related 20,577             47,389             24,941             31,177             124,084           

Total deferred inflows of resources 47,415             118,380           44,318             57,692             267,805           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets -                      24,350             4,127,391        -                      4,151,741        
Unrestricted 186,659           194,558           3,288,701        (430,797)          3,239,121        

Total net position 186,659$         218,908$         7,416,092$      (430,797)$        7,390,862$      
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total Internal
Service
Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Interdepartmental charges for services 9,227,792$      3,393,436$      2,529,539$      2,229,925$      17,380,692$    
Miscellaneous -                      710                  32,822             -                      33,532             

Total operating revenues 9,227,792        3,394,146        2,562,361        2,229,925        17,414,224      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 419,032           1,325,402        365,011           506,859           2,616,304        
Employee benefits 166,060           490,163           208,021           228,728           1,092,972        
Contract for professional services 185,793           621,382           220,923           578,832           1,606,930        
Materials and services 563,234           920,581           647,197           638,068           2,769,080        
Utilities 122                  819                  -                      131,327           132,268           
Claims 9,135,160        -                      -                      -                      9,135,160        
Depreciation/amortization -                      32,037             729,198           48,565             809,800           

Total operating expenses 10,469,401      3,390,384        2,170,350        2,132,379        18,162,514      

Operating income (loss) (1,241,609)       3,762               392,011           97,546             (748,290)          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest expense (12,694)            (41,029)            (12,092)            (15,467)            (81,282)            
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets -                      -                      45,573             -                      45,573             

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (12,694)            (41,029)            33,481             (15,467)            (35,709)            

Change in net position (1,254,303)       (37,267)            425,492           82,079             (783,999)          

Net position-beginning 1,440,962        256,175           6,812,868        (512,876)          7,997,129        

Restatements -                      -                      177,732           -                      177,732           

Net position-beginning 1,440,962        256,175           6,990,600        (512,876)          8,174,861        

Net position-ending 186,659$         218,908$         7,416,092$      (430,797)$        7,390,862$      
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total Internal
Service
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from interfund charges 9,227,615$    3,394,146$  2,562,361$   2,229,925$     17,414,047$  
Payments to suppliers and service providers (9,563,991)     (1,553,192)   (900,753)       (1,406,444)     (13,424,380)   
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (527,648)        (1,612,634)   (516,691)       (651,308)        (3,308,281)     

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (864,024)        228,320       1,144,917     172,173          681,386         

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on pension obligation bonds (21,284)          (66,407)        (18,996)         (25,923)          (132,610)        
Interest paid on pension obligation bonds (12,694)          (39,607)        (11,330)         (14,069)          (77,700)          

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities (33,978)          (106,014)      (30,326)         (39,992)          (210,310)        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets -                     -                   (1,247,858)    -                     (1,247,858)     
Principal paid on capital debt -                     (56,387)        (30,251)         (48,413)          (135,051)        
Interest paid on capital debt -                     (170)             (2,648)           (1,399)            (4,217)            
Proceeds from sales of assets -                     -                   47,875          -                     47,875           

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities -                     (56,557)        (1,232,882)    (49,812)          (1,339,251)     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (898,002)        65,749         (118,291)       82,369            (868,175)        

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning 19,649,749    1,586,800    3,828,950     22,167            25,087,666    

Cash and cash equivalents-ending 18,751,747$  1,652,549$  3,710,659$   104,536$        24,219,491$  

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Cash and investments 18,751,747$  1,652,549$  3,710,656$   104,536$        24,219,488$  

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) (1,241,609)$   3,762$         392,011$      97,546$          (748,290)$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation/amortization expense -                     32,037         729,198        48,565            809,800         
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1,450             -                   -                    -                     1,450             
(Increase) decrease in inventories -                     -                   -                    11,399            11,399           
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,176)            (8,525)          (32,633)         (64,047)          (107,381)        
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (466)               (1,885)          (3,100)           (5,569)            (11,020)          
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (1,627)            -                   -                    -                     (1,627)            
Increase (decrease) in workers' compensation claims (29,357)          -                   -                    -                     (29,357)          
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments 352,317         -                   -                    -                     352,317         
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 492,172         1,454,755    410,251        560,315          2,917,493      
Increase (decrease in net OPEB liability 22,929           52,805         27,792          34,740            138,266         
Increase (decrease) in pension-related deferred items (444,470)        (1,274,260)   (362,619)       (490,796)        (2,572,145)     
Increase (decrease) in OPEB-related deferred items (13,187)          (30,369)        (15,983)         (19,980)          (79,519)          

Total adjustments 377,585         224,558       752,906        74,627            1,429,676      
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (864,024)$      228,320$     1,144,917$   172,173$        681,386$       

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH NONCAPITAL, CAPITAL, AND
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Subscription assets -                     123,242       67,385          -                     190,627         
Capital assets restatements - - 177,732 - 177,732         

 Insurance 
Reserve 

 Information 
Systems 

 Fleet 
Management 

 Building 
Maintenance 

and 
Operations 

127

DRAFT



 

 

 

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH 
FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

TO:   Members of the Finance Subcommittee 

THROUGH: Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director 

FROM:  Julie Bondarchuk, Financial Controller 
  Amira Khodari, Accounting and Payroll Supervisor 

SUBJECT:  CalPERS Update FY 2022-2023 

DATE:  December 12, 2023 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Finance Subcommittee receive the FY 2022-2023 CalPERS update. 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
Since 1947, the City has participated in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 

to provide retirement benefits to employees. Since the CalPERS retirement system is a defined 

benefit plan, any short funding of the plan is the responsibility of the City. Due to the significant 

financial implications, it is important for the City to understand its financial standing with CalPERS. 

 

DISCUSSION: 
Understanding the City’s current financial status with CalPERS involves several variables. CalPERS 

maintains a long-term outlook and, historically, based its calculations on the assumption of a 6.8% 

(discount rate) average return on investments. Annual investment returns vary, potentially creating 

unfunded liabilities that the City is required to address.  

 

 

 

 



At the end of each fiscal year, CalPERS begins working on actuarial reports that will be issued one 

year after a given fiscal year has ended. These actuarial reports determine the rates and liability 

payments that will be effective during the fiscal year subsequent to the year when the report is 

issued. Due to this timetable, this typically means that rates and liability amortization schedules lag 

a year behind the fiscal period the report is received and two years behind the fiscal period 

investment return in the report.  

 

Unfunded pension liability occurs when there is a negative variance between the value of the 

investments (assets) held by CalPERS and the actuarially determined liability discounted to present 

day. CalPERS’ current discount rate is 6.8%, down from 7.0% in FY 2019-2020. Unfunded liability 

may occur when the CalPERS investment returns are less than the discount rate, when the discount 

rate is lowered, or when actuarial assumptions are changed. Below is a summary of the CalPERS 

investment summary for the past 4-years. 

 

 
 

In May 2021, the City issued Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) to fund 100% of the City’s nearly $90 

million of unfunded liability as of FY 2018-2019. At this time, the City also adopted an Unfunded 

Liability Policy (Pension Policy) to guide the use of budgetary savings resulting from the POBs. With 

this Policy, use of the budgetary savings is allocated between the Pension Rate Stabilization Trust 

Fund to offset future unfunded liability costs and funding future capital improvements, infrastructure 

needs and/or debt service. Currently, the balance of the Pension Rate Stabilization Trust Fund is 

approximately $2.7 million, including principal and accumulated interest. These funds may be used 

for payments to CalPERS at the City’s discretion. Additionally, the Pension Policy also define a payoff 

period for new unfunded liability, as depicted below: 

 



 
 

In FY 2019-2020, CalPERS generated investment returns of 4.7%, resulting in unfunded liability of 

$6.8 million. In FY 2020-2021, CalPERS generated a 21.3% return, resulting in a surplus of $31.7 

million. The large investment return in FY 2020-2021 also triggered a lowering of the discount rate 

from 7.0% to 6.8%, a strategy used by CalPERS to de-risk the plan. FY 2021-2022 resulted in a net 

investment loss of 6.1%, resulting in an unfunded liability of approximately $28.2 million. For FY 

2022-2023, the preliminary investment return was 5.8%, one percent lower than the discount rate 

of 6.8%. Staff anticipates approximately $5 million of unfunded liability added because of the FY 

2022-2023 returns. Amortization payments to pay this liability will be included in subsequent 

budgets. 

 

CONCLUSION: 
While the current unfunded liability seems like a large number, it is important to note that CalPERS is 

a long-term plan and is based on investment returns that fluctuate year-over-year with surpluses 

from one year mitigating liabilities from another. Below is the historical CalPERS returns over a 20-

year period.   

 

 



As part of its review, staff monitors CalPERS investment returns over 5-year (7.0%), 10-year (8.0%), 

and 20-year (7.5%) periods. Staff’s goal is to monitor the City’s current financial situation and plan 

accordingly while also taking into account a long-term view on the pension funding. Staff will 

continue to refine projections and provide further information as updates become available. A 

payment plan will be included in the next budget cycle. 



 

 

 

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH 
FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

TO:    Members of the Finance Subcommittee 

THROUGH: Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director 

FROM:   Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager 
  Julie Bondarchuk, Financial Controller  

SUBJECT:   Investment Portfolio as of October 31, 2023 

DATE:   December 12, 2023 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Finance Subcommittee receive and file this report. 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. As of October 31, 2023, 

the City’s investment portfolio totaled $114.5 million in book value ($116.7 million par value). 

 

DISCUSSION: 
Since the last update as of August 31, 2023, the City’s investment portfolio has decreased overall by 
$11.6 million in par value. Cash flow trends have been mostly consistent with prior years, including the 
usual pattern of the summer months operating at a deficit when normal operating activities (warrants 
and payroll coverage) exceed revenues. In the last year, cash outflows were also higher due to 
spending on large capital projects, including Peck Reservoir, Sepulveda Bridge and Fire Station #2.  
Property Taxes received during the months of December, January, April and May help offset the 
deficits occurring during the summer months. Additionally, anticipated grant reimbursements will 
balance some of the construction expenditures.   

Activity 
The following purchase and redemption activity took place between September 1, 2023, and 
October 31, 2023: 
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FFCB = Federal Farm Credit Bank; FHLB = Federal Home Loan Bank; FHLMC = Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 
(Freddie Mac); FNMA = Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); MTN = Corporate Medium Term Note 

 

Average Yield to Maturity on the City’s portfolio book value increased to 2.734% in October from 
2.719% in August. During this period, no purchases were made. Investment maturities totaled $3.0 
million. Currently, $26.7 million is being held in LAIF as market conditions and investment 
opportunities are monitored in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy. Efforts are made to 
ensure the portfolio is well-balanced by investing in high-grade securities diversified in origin and 
maturity date.  

 

Attachments:   Investment Portfolio Report as of October 31, 2023 

RECENT ACTIVITY 
Security Date of Activity Maturity Date Purchase (Par) Maturing/Call YTM
     Total Purchases $0
Matured: FNMA - 2.875% Coupon 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 1,000,000 0.499%
Matured: TMC - 3.460964% Coupon 9/20/2023 9/20/2023 1,000,000 3.461%
Matured: TMC - 2.25% Coupon 10/18/2023 10/18/2023 1,000,000 2.634%
     Total Maturing/Calls $3,000,000 2.198%



CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Portfolio Management

October  1, 2023 through October 31, 2023
Portfolio Summary

% of
Portfolio

Book
ValueInvestments

Market
Value

Par
Value

Days to
MaturityTerm

YTM
360 Equiv.

YTM
365 Equiv.

LAIF 26,653,799.67 123.27 3.620126,653,799.6726,653,799.67 3.670
Medium Term Notes 19,075,910.29 1,66016.66 3.4561,14818,414,310.0020,000,000.00 3.504
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 28,758,474.33 1,42425.11 2.39663827,742,120.0029,000,000.00 2.429
Treasury Securities - Coupon 40,038,193.86 1,58434.96 1.93688137,730,560.0041,000,000.00 1.963

114,526,378.15 100.00%
Investments

110,540,789.67116,653,799.67 1,188 660 2.696 2.734

Cash

(not included in yield calculations)
Passbook/Checking 4,986,897.23 1 0.00014,986,897.234,986,897.23 0.000

119,513,275.38Total Cash and Investments 115,527,686.90121,640,696.90 1,188 660 2.696 2.734

Current Year
October 31

237,971.56
Fiscal Year To Date

960,855.52
Total Earnings Month Ending

__________________________________________________     ____________________
STEVE S. CHARELIAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR

Portfolio CITY
CP

Reporting period 10/01/2023-10/31/2023

Run Date: 11/22/2023 - 17:19 PM (PRF_PM1) 7.3.11
Report Ver. 7.3.11
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Par Value Book Value
Maturity

Date
Stated

RateMarket Value

October 31, 2023
Portfolio Details - Investments

Issuer

Portfolio Management
CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Days to
MaturityS&PCUSIP Investment #

Purchase
Date

LAIF

3.670Local Agency Invest. Fund3000 26,653,799.67 26,653,799.67 3.67007/01/2018 26,653,799.67SYS3000 1

26,653,799.6726,653,799.6726,653,799.67Subtotal and Average 3.670 1

Medium Term Notes

4.905APPLE INCMTN0112 1,000,000.00 926,410.29 09/12/20272.90010/25/2022 919,430.00 AA+037833DB3 1,411
4.171APPLE INCMTN0121 1,000,000.00 992,446.00 05/10/20284.00006/12/2023 952,810.00 AA+037833ET3 1,652
1.963AMAZON.COM LLCMTN0111 1,000,000.00 972,214.84 05/12/20261.00002/24/2022 899,430.00 AA023135BX3 923
4.282AMAZON.COM LLCMTN0116 1,000,000.00 955,654.78 08/22/20273.15002/09/2023 925,200.00 AA023135BC9 1,390
1.850BANK OF NY MELLOMTN0109 1,000,000.00 1,011,205.00 10/24/20242.10002/10/2020 964,020.00 A06406RAL1 358
4.410BANK OF NY MELLOMTN0118 1,000,000.00 959,059.91 01/29/20283.40004/14/2023 908,600.00 A06406RAF4 1,550
4.690COLGATE-PALM COMTN0123 2,000,000.00 1,992,460.00 03/01/20284.60007/10/2023 1,959,080.00 AA-194162AR4 1,582
3.743COSTCO COMPANIESMTN0117 1,000,000.00 908,947.14 06/20/20271.37504/14/2023 870,350.00 A+22160KAN5 1,327
3.765COSTCO COMPANIESMTN0119 1,000,000.00 907,900.21 06/20/20271.37504/18/2023 870,350.00 A+22160KAN5 1,327
1.977Walt DisneyMTN0107 2,000,000.00 1,994,901.64 08/30/20241.75012/12/2019 1,934,840.00 A-254687FK7 303
4.593Johnson & JohnsonMTN0113 1,000,000.00 863,285.17 09/01/20270.95010/25/2022 856,100.00 AAA478160CP7 1,400
3.880Johnson & JohnsonMTN0114 1,000,000.00 884,038.16 09/01/20270.95012/22/2022 856,100.00 AAA478160CP7 1,400
1.890COCA-COLA COMTN0108 1,000,000.00 993,679.00 09/06/20241.75012/12/2019 968,820.00 A+191216CL2 310
4.374COCA-COLA COMTN0124 1,000,000.00 851,830.00 03/15/20281.00007/10/2023 839,550.00 A+191216DD9 1,596
4.163MICROSOFT CORPMTN0115 1,000,000.00 970,825.17 02/06/20273.30012/22/2022 944,710.00 AAA594918BY9 1,193
0.950MERCK & CO INCMTN0110 1,000,000.00 991,420.00 02/24/20260.75010/05/2021 901,720.00 A+58933YAY1 846
4.210MERCK & CO INCMTN0120 1,000,000.00 992,917.00 05/17/20284.05006/12/2023 951,880.00 A+58933YBH7 1,659
4.183WALMART INCMTN0122 1,000,000.00 906,715.98 09/17/20261.05006/12/2023 891,320.00 AA931142ER0 1,051

19,075,910.2918,414,310.0020,000,000.00Subtotal and Average 3.504 1,148

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon

3.850FARMER MACFAC0304 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 02/14/20283.85002/14/2023 953,970.0031422XW99 1,566
1.870FED FARM CR BKFAC0294 1,000,000.00 997,642.00 08/22/20251.80002/24/2022 941,990.00 AA+3133ENPX2 660
2.747FED FARM CR BKFAC0296 2,000,000.00 2,029,510.43 03/22/20273.15004/11/2022 1,883,240.00 AA+3133EJDV8 1,237
2.625FED FARM CR BKFAC0297 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 05/16/20242.62505/16/2022 1,969,620.00 AA+3133ENWP1 197
3.250FED FARM CR BKFAC0301 1,000,000.00 967,981.64 11/18/20240.87506/17/2022 954,350.003133ENEJ5 383
4.550FED FARM CR BKFAC0303 1,000,000.00 998,356.00 07/27/20264.50010/27/2022 986,820.003133ENV72 999
1.771Federal Home Loan BankFAC0285 2,000,000.00 2,026,781.80 09/13/20242.87512/11/2019 1,956,360.003130A2UW4 317
1.470Federal Home Loan BankFAC0289 1,000,000.00 1,001,306.00 08/15/20241.50002/07/2020 967,570.00 AA+3130AGWK7 288
0.312Federal Home Loan BankFAC0291 1,000,000.00 1,025,351.96 06/14/20242.87502/04/2021 983,910.00 AA+3130A1XJ2 226
1.871Federal Home Loan BankFAC0293 1,000,000.00 995,852.00 09/12/20251.75002/24/2022 939,580.00 AA+3130A8ZQ9 681
3.230Federal Home Loan BankFAC0300 1,000,000.00 990,620.00 06/28/20242.75006/17/2022 982,430.003130ASDS5 240

Portfolio CITY
CP

Run Date: 11/22/2023 - 17:19 PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11

Report Ver. 7.3.11
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Par Value Book Value
Maturity

Date
Stated

RateMarket Value

October 31, 2023
Portfolio Details - Investments

Issuer

Portfolio Management
CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Days to
MaturityS&PCUSIP Investment #

Purchase
Date

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon

4.343Federal Home Loan BankFAC0302 1,000,000.00 901,096.77 06/12/20260.87510/24/2022 900,110.003130AN4T4 954
4.048Federal Home Loan BankFAC0306 1,000,000.00 965,172.65 03/12/20273.00006/12/2023 937,570.00 AA+3130A3DU5 1,227
4.483Federal Home Loan BankFAC0307 1,000,000.00 980,718.06 06/09/20284.00007/10/2023 961,110.00 AA+3130AWC24 1,682
2.722Federal Home Loan MortgageFAC0298 2,000,000.00 1,897,431.02 09/23/20250.37505/13/2022 1,829,480.00 AA+3137EAEX3 692
1.700Fannie MaeFAC0286 2,000,000.00 1,993,020.00 10/15/20241.62512/11/2019 1,928,660.00 AA+3135G0W66 349
1.500Fannie MaeFAC0287 2,000,000.00 2,011,260.00 10/15/20241.62502/07/2020 1,928,660.00 AA+3135G0W66 349
1.526Fannie MaeFAC0288 2,000,000.00 2,005,040.61 07/02/20241.75002/07/2020 1,951,240.00 AA+3135G0V75 244
0.259Fannie MaeFAC0290 1,000,000.00 1,015,308.35 07/02/20241.75002/04/2021 975,620.00 AA+3135G0V75 244
3.597Fannie MaeFAC0305 1,000,000.00 889,386.01 10/08/20270.75004/14/2023 851,020.003135G05Y5 1,437
1.763Tennessee Valley AuthorityFAC0295 1,000,000.00 980,242.45 05/15/20250.75002/24/2022 931,870.00 AA+880591EW8 561
2.894Tennessee Valley AuthorityFAC0299 1,000,000.00 1,086,396.58 11/01/20256.75005/13/2022 1,026,940.00 AA+880591CJ9 731

28,758,474.3327,742,120.0029,000,000.00Subtotal and Average 2.429 638

Treasury Securities - Coupon

2.234US TREASURYUST0033 1,000,000.00 995,039.06 02/29/20242.12505/13/2019 988,980.00912828W48 120
2.240US TREASURYUST0034 1,000,000.00 994,687.50 03/31/20242.12505/13/2019 986,370.00912828W71 151
1.493US TREASURYUST0035 2,000,000.00 2,009,523.10 08/31/20241.87502/07/2020 1,941,400.009128282U3 304
0.561US TREASURYUST0036 1,000,000.00 993,274.47 06/30/20250.25005/28/2021 922,340.00912828ZW3 607
0.591US TREASURYUST0039 1,000,000.00 993,084.36 06/30/20250.25008/11/2021 922,340.00912828ZW3 607
1.058US TREASURYUST0047 1,000,000.00 984,808.19 05/31/20250.25012/08/2021 925,430.00912828ZT0 577
1.001US TREASURYUST0051 1,000,000.00 1,003,906.25 02/28/20251.12512/09/2021 946,680.00912828ZC7 485
2.665US TREASURYUST0054 2,000,000.00 1,920,471.07 01/31/20271.50004/08/2022 1,798,600.00912828Z78 1,187
3.287US TREASURYUST0057 1,000,000.00 945,083.00 08/15/20261.50006/17/2022 911,560.009128282A7 1,018
3.285US TREASURYUST0059 1,000,000.00 966,695.38 05/15/20272.37509/01/2022 918,910.00912828X88 1,291
3.295US TREASURYUST0060 1,000,000.00 966,320.36 05/15/20272.37509/01/2022 918,910.00912828X88 1,291
3.241US TREASURYUST0062 1,000,000.00 896,912.72 06/30/20270.50009/01/2022 854,730.00912828ZV5 1,337
4.180US TREASURYUST0064 1,000,000.00 915,206.00 10/31/20261.62510/25/2022 909,490.00912828YQ7 1,095
3.747US TREASURYUST0066 1,000,000.00 939,566.28 08/15/20272.25002/09/2023 909,610.009128282R0 1,383
0.576US TREASURYUST0037 2,000,000.00 1,985,593.36 07/31/20250.25005/28/2021 1,837,740.0091282CAB7 638
0.620US TREASURYUST0038 1,000,000.00 991,661.58 08/31/20250.25005/28/2021 915,660.0091282CAJ0 669
0.601US TREASURYUST0040 1,000,000.00 992,747.50 07/31/20250.25008/11/2021 918,870.0091282CAB7 638
0.586US TREASURYUST0041 1,000,000.00 992,069.78 08/31/20250.25008/11/2021 915,660.0091282CAJ0 669
0.658US TREASURYUST0042 1,000,000.00 992,979.34 11/30/20250.37508/09/2021 908,560.0091282CAZ4 760
0.681US TREASURYUST0043 1,000,000.00 990,759.58 07/31/20250.25010/05/2021 918,870.0091282CAB7 638
0.707US TREASURYUST0044 2,000,000.00 1,976,901.44 10/31/20250.25010/05/2021 1,818,680.0091282CAT8 730
0.907US TREASURYUST0045 1,000,000.00 992,500.00 08/31/20260.75010/05/2021 891,090.0091282CCW9 1,034

Portfolio CITY
CP

Run Date: 11/22/2023 - 17:19 PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11
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Par Value Book Value
Maturity

Date
Stated

RateMarket Value

October 31, 2023
Portfolio Details - Investments

Issuer

Portfolio Management
CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Days to
MaturityS&PCUSIP Investment #

Purchase
Date

Treasury Securities - Coupon

0.892US TREASURYUST0046 1,000,000.00 991,732.72 07/31/20260.62510/05/2021 891,060.0091282CCP4 1,003
1.191US TREASURYUST0048 1,000,000.00 987,545.08 05/31/20260.75012/09/2021 899,180.0091282CCF6 942
1.176US TREASURYUST0049 1,000,000.00 990,513.58 06/30/20260.87512/09/2021 900,860.0091282CCJ8 972
1.210US TREASURYUST0050 1,000,000.00 989,148.45 09/30/20260.87512/09/2021 892,810.0091282CCZ2 1,064
1.678US TREASURYUST0052 2,000,000.00 1,931,563.91 09/30/20250.25002/24/2022 1,825,780.0091282CAM3 699
2.581US TREASURYUST0053 1,000,000.00 950,944.94 10/31/20261.12504/08/2022 895,980.0091282CDG3 1,095
2.750US TREASURYUST0055 1,000,000.00 996,500.00 04/15/20252.62505/16/2022 963,560.0091282CEH0 531
3.187US TREASURYUST0056 1,000,000.00 920,994.76 07/31/20260.62506/17/2022 891,060.0091282CCP4 1,003
3.302US TREASURYUST0058 1,000,000.00 924,410.65 09/30/20260.87506/17/2022 892,810.0091282CCZ2 1,064
3.300US TREASURYUST0061 1,000,000.00 997,755.04 06/30/20273.25009/01/2022 945,900.0091282CEW7 1,337
3.309US TREASURYUST0063 1,000,000.00 979,788.81 07/31/20272.75009/01/2022 927,380.0091282CFB2 1,368
3.787US TREASURYUST0065 1,000,000.00 959,884.27 07/31/20272.75012/22/2022 927,380.0091282CFB2 1,368
3.804US TREASURYUST0067 2,000,000.00 1,977,621.33 01/31/20283.50002/09/2023 1,896,320.0091282CGH8 1,552

40,038,193.8637,730,560.0041,000,000.00Subtotal and Average 1.963 881

Total and Average 116,653,799.67 2.734 660110,540,789.67 114,526,378.15

Portfolio CITY
CP

Run Date: 11/22/2023 - 17:19 PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11
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Par Value Book Value
Stated

RateMarket Value

October 31, 2023
Portfolio Details - Cash

Issuer

Portfolio Management
CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Days to
MaturityS&PCUSIP Investment #

Purchase
Date

Money Market Fund

0.000UNION BANK39901 4,986,897.23 4,986,897.2307/01/2018 4,986,897.23SYS39903-39902 1

Subtotal and Average

Total Cash and Investments 121,640,696.90 2.734 660

1

115,527,686.90 119,513,275.38

Portfolio CITY
CP

Run Date: 11/22/2023 - 17:19 PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11



City of Manhattan Beach
Investment Portfolio Summary

As of October 31, 2023

PORTFOLIO PROFILE Oct 31, 2023 Sep 30, 2023 Aug 31, 2023 Jul 31, 2023 Jun 30, 2023
Total Book Value (Excluding Trust Funds) $114,526,378 $122,202,752 $126,206,553 $129,212,774 $135,056,946
Increase/(Decrease) from Prior Period (7,676,374)         (4,003,801)         (3,006,221)         (5,844,171)         (921,490)            
Percentage Change (6.3%) (3.2%) (2.3%) (4.3%) (0.7%)

Average Yield to Maturity (365 Days) 2.734% 2.755% 2.719% 2.671% 2.607%
Increase/(Decrease) from Prior Period (0.021%) 0.035% 0.049% 0.064% 0.085%

PORTFOLIO ALLOCATIONS
By Security Value (Par) Percent Par YTM Time Horizon Percent
LAIF* $26,653,800 22.85% 3.670% Next 12 months 42%
Medium Term Notes 20,000,000 17.1% 3.504% Months 13-24 18%
Federal Agencies 29,000,000 24.9% 2.429% Months 25-36 15%
U.S. Treasuries 41,000,000 35.1% 1.963% Months 37-48 17%
Total $116,653,800 100.0% 2.733% Months 49-60 9%
*LAIF YTM as of October 31, 2023 BAD Total 100.0%

RECENT ACTIVITY 
Security Date of Activity Maturity Date Purchase (Par) Maturing/Call YTM
FHLB - 4% Coupon 7/10/2023 6/9/2028 1,000,000 4.483%
CL - 4.6% Coupon 7/10/2023 3/1/2028 2,000,000 4.690%
KO - 1% Coupon 7/10/2023 3/15/2028 1,000,000 4.374%
     Total Purchases $4,000,000 4.559%
Matured: MSFT - 2% Coupon 8/8/2023 8/8/2023 1,000,000 2.025%
Matured: BK - 2.2% Coupon 8/16/2023 8/16/2023 1,000,000 1.951%
Matured: T - 1.375% Coupon 8/31/2023 8/31/2023 1,000,000 2.432%
Matured: FNMA - 2.875% Coupon 9/12/2023 9/12/2023 1,000,000 0.499%
Matured: TMC - 3.460964% Coupon 9/20/2023 9/20/2023 1,000,000 3.461%
Matured: TMC - 2.25% Coupon 10/18/2023 10/18/2023 1,000,000 2.634%
     Total Maturing/Calls $6,000,000 2.167%



City of Manhattan Beach
Investment Portfolio Summary

As of October 31, 2023

3‐Month 6‐Month 2‐Year 5‐Year 10‐Year
August 2023 5.56% 5.54% 4.90% 4.31% 4.17%
September 2023 5.56% 5.51% 5.02% 4.49% 4.38%
October 2023 5.60% 5.57% 5.07% 4.77% 4.80%
Portfolio 2.734% 2.734% 2.734% 2.734% 2.734%
LAIF 3 670% 3 670% 3 670% 3 670% 3 670%

Portfolio, 2.734%

LAIF, 3.670%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

US Treasuries Yield Curve
www.treas.gov

Monthly yields are interpolated by the Treasury from the daily yield curve.



CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH HELD TO MATURITY
Portfolio Maturity Structure Rolling 60 Months
November 2023 through October 2028

Mth Mat. YTM Inv Call Amt Mth Mat. YTM Inv Call Amt Mth Mat. YTM Inv Call Amt Mth Mat. YTM Inv Call Amt Mth Mat. YTM Inv Call Amt
Nov 23 Nov 24 11/18/24 3.25% FFCB nc $1.0M Nov 25 11/30/25 0.66% T nc $1.0M Nov 26 Nov 27

11/1/25 2.89% TVA nc $1.0M

Dec 23 Dec 24 Dec 25 Dec 26 Dec 27
Jan 24 Jan 25 Jan 26 Jan 27 1/31/27 2.67% T nc $2.0M Jan 28 1/29/28 4.41% BK nc $1.0M

1/31/28 3.80% T nc $2.0M

Feb 24 2/29/24 2.2% T nc $1.0M Feb 25 2/28/25 1.00% T nc $1.0M Feb 26 2/24/26 0.95% MRK MW: 10 $1.0M Feb 27 2/6/27 4.16% MSFT nc $1.0M Feb 28 2/14/28 3.85% FAMCA nc $1.0M

Mar 24 3/31/24 2.2% T nc $1.0M Mar 25 Mar 26 Mar 27 3/22/27 2.75% FFCB nc $2.0M Mar 28 3/1/28 4.69% CL nc $2.0M

3/12/27 4.05% FHLB nc $1.0M 3/15/28 4.37% KO nc $1.0M

Apr 24 Apr 25 4/15/25 2.75% T nc $1.0M Apr 26 Apr 27 Apr 28
May 24 5/16/24 2.6% FFCB nc $2.0M May 25 5/15/25 1.76% TVA nc $1.0M May 26 5/31/26 1.19% T nc $1.0M May 27 5/15/27 3.28% T nc $1.0M May 28 5/17/28 4.21% MRK nc $1.0M

5/31/25 1.06% T nc $1.0M 5/12/26 1.96% AMZN nc $1.0M 5/15/27 3.29% T nc $1.0M 5/10/28 4.17% AAPL nc $1.0M

Jun 24 6/14/24 0.3% FHLB nc $1.0M Jun 25 6/30/25 0.56% T nc $1.0M Jun 26 6/30/26 1.18% T nc $1.0M Jun 27 6/20/27 3.74% COST nc $1.0M Jun 28 6/9/28 4.48% FHLB nc $1.0M

6/28/24 3.2% FHLB nc $1.0M 6/30/25 0.59% T nc $1.0M 6/12/26 4.34% FHLB nc $1.0M 6/30/27 3.24% T nc $1.0M

6/30/27 3.30% T nc $1.0M

6/20/27 3.76% COST nc $1.0M

Jul 24 7/2/24 1.5% FNMA nc $2.0M Jul 25 7/31/25 0.58% T nc $2.0M Jul 26 7/31/26 0.89% T nc $1.0M Jul 27 7/31/27 3.31% T nc $1.0M Jul 28
7/2/24 0.3% FNMA nc $1.0M 7/31/25 0.60% T nc $1.0M 7/31/26 3.19% T nc $1.0M 7/31/27 3.79% T nc $1.0M

7/31/25 0.68% T nc $1.0M 7/27/26 4.55% FFCB nc $1.0M

Aug 24 8/15/24 1.5% FHLB nc $1.0M Aug 25 8/31/25 0.62% T nc $1.0M Aug 26 8/31/26 0.91% T nc $1.0M Aug 27 8/15/27 3.75% T nc $1.0M Aug 28
8/30/24 2.0% DIS 7/30/24 $2.0M 8/31/25 0.59% T nc $1.0M 8/15/26 3.29% T nc $1.0M 8/22/27 4.28% AMZN nc $1.0M

8/31/24 1.5% T nc $2.0M 8/22/25 1.87% FFCB nc $1.0M

Sep 24 9/6/24 1.9% KO 9/6/24 $1.0M Sep 25 9/12/25 1.87% FHLB nc $1.0M Sep 26 9/30/26 1.21% T nc $1.0M Sep 27 9/12/27 4.91% AAPL nc $1.0M Sep 28
9/13/24 1.8% FHLB nc $2.0M 9/23/25 2.72% FHLMC nc $2.0M 9/30/26 3.30% T nc $1.0M 9/1/27 4.59% JNJ nc $1.0M

9/30/25 1.68% T nc $2.0M 9/17/26 4.18% WMT nc $1.0M 9/1/27 3.88% JNJ nc $1.0M

Oct 24 10/15/24 1.7% FNMA nc $2.0M Oct 25 10/31/25 0.71% T nc $2.0M Oct 26 10/31/26 2.58% T nc $1.0M Oct 27 10/8/27 3.60% FNMA nc $1.0M Oct 28
10/15/24 1.5% FNMA nc $2.0M 10/31/26 4.18% T nc $1.0M

10/24/24 1.9% BK 9/6/24 $1.0M

Total By Year (excl LAIF) $22.0m $21.0m $17.0m $20.0m $10.0m
% of Total Securities (excl LAIF) 24% 23% 19% 22% 11%
% of Total Investments (incl LAIF) 42% 18% 15% 17% 9%

Total Securities 77% $90.0M

LAIF 23% $26.7M

Total Investments 100% $116.7M

Shaded rows indicate months with significant cash inflows.



City of Manhattan Beach
Investment Policy Compliance Chart
As of October 31, 2023

Instrument % of Total Limit Compliant? Limit Compliant? Limit Compliant?
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $26,653,800 22.8% $75,000,000 Yes

Treasury Securities
US Treasury $41,000,000 35.1% 5 Years Yes

Total U.S. Treasuries (35) TRUE $41,000,000 35.1%

Medium Term (Corporate) Notes
Coca-Cola 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Amazon 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Costco 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Walmart 1,000,000 0.9% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Colgate-Palmolive 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes

Total Consumer Goods Sector $9,000,000 7.7% 10.0% Yes

Bank of NY 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Financial Sector $2,000,000 1.7% 10.0% Yes

Johnson & Johnson 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Merck 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes

Total Pharmaceuticals Sector $4,000,000 3.4% 10.0% Yes

Apple Inc 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Microsoft Corp 1,000,000 0.9% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes

Total Technology Sector $3,000,000 2.6% 10.0% Yes
Walt Disney Co 2,000,000 1.7% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes

Total Communication Services Sector $2,000,000
Total Medium Term Notes (18) TRUE $20,000,000 17.1% 20.0% Yes

Federal Agencies
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) $9,000,000 7.7% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Federal Farm Credit (FFCB) 7,000,000 6.0% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Fannie Mae (FNMA) 8,000,000 6.9% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Freddie Mac (FHLMC) 2,000,000 1.7% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Frarmer Mac (FAMCA) 1,000,000 0.9% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) 2,000,000 1.7% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes

Total Federal Agencies (22) TRUE $29,000,000 24.9% 60.0% Yes

Total Portfolio $116,653,800 100.0%

Dollar Compliance Percentage Compliance Term Compliance

Temporary Suspension



Investments Book Value
LAIF $26,653,799.67 
Treasury Securities 40,038,193.86 
Federal Agency Issues-Coupon 28,758,474.33 
Medium Term Notes 19,075,910.29 
Subtotal Investments $114,526,378.15 

Demand Deposit/Petty Cash
Cash in Bank $4,986,897.23 
Petty Cash 2,280.41 

$4,989,177.64 

Subtotal City Cash & Investments $119,515,555.79 

Bond Funds Held in Trust 
Police Fire Refunding $59.55 
Fire Station 2 COPs 75.49 
Marine Ave Park Refunding 0.05 
Metlox & Water/Wastewater Refunding 202.11 
Utility Assessment Districts 1,159,649.08 
Pension Obligation Bonds 2,746.43 

Subtotal Bonds Held in Trust $1,162,732.71 

Investment Trust Funds
PARS Pension Rate Stabilization Trust 2,719,723.53             

   Treasurer's Balance $123,398,012.03 

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
TREASURER'S REPORT

October 31, 2023

  Subtotal Demand Deposit



October 3.670
September 3.534

August 3.434
July 3.305**

June 3.167
May 2.993

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 3.59
 LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00009812538629360

 LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.29

PMIA Average Life(1): 256

 LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.986307739
PMIA Daily(1): 3.48

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 3.42

Treasuries
61.60%

Agencies
21.62%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

7.81%

Time 
Deposits

3.11%

Commercial
Paper
5.32%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.31%

Loans
0.23%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that 
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

** Revised

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 11/14/23

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 09/30/23

Chart does not include $2,300,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
 Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

10/31/23
$165.7 billion

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


 

 

 

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH 
FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE STAFF REPORT 

TO:    Members of the Finance Subcommittee 

THROUGH: Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director 

FROM:   Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager 
  Emy-Rose Hanna, Revenue Services Supervisor 
 

SUBJECT:   FY 2023-2024 Monthly Schedule of Transient Occupancy Tax, Lease Payments and 
Miscellaneous Accounts Receivables  

DATE:   December 12, 2023 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Finance Subcommittee receive this report. 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. The information 

presented in the attachments reflect the City’s diligent efforts to bill and collect payment for various 

revenue programs. 

 

DISCUSSION: 
The Revenue Services Division invoices for miscellaneous accounts receivable and collects all City 
revenues. The attached schedule identifies Transient Occupancy Taxes (TOT), lease revenue, 
franchise revenue and other payments. 
 
The attached Aging Statistical Report identifies the number of days outstanding for all 
miscellaneous accounts receivable invoices. Accounts at least 120 days past due and considered 
uncollectable by the City are written off per City policy. 
 

Attachments:   
1. FY 2023-2024 Monthly Schedule of TOT, Lease and Miscellaneous Payments 
2. FY 2023-2024 Accounts Receivable Aging Statistical Report 



MONTHLY REVENUES

Due Date Acct # July 2023 Aug 2023 Sept 2023 Oct 2023 Nov 2023 Dec 2023 Jan 2024 Feb 2024 Mar 2024 Apr 2024 May 2024 June 2024    TOTALS

HOTEL BED TAX:
1 The Belamar (19) M 20TH 100-41211 7/20/2023 8/19/2023 9/22/2023 10/18/2023 11/17/2023        
2 Hotel Pacific (47 rms)* M 20TH 100-41211 7/17/2023 8/17/2023 9/18/2023 10/18/2023 11/20/2023        
3 Man Village Inn (19) M 20TH 100-41211 7/10/2023 8/10/2023 9/11/2023 10/10/2023 11/14/2023        
4 Best Western Plus (53) M 20TH 100-41211 7/20/2023 8/10/2023 9/12/2023 10/18/2023 11/17/2023        
5 Hi-View Motel (20) M 20TH 100-41211 7/21/2023 8/24/2023 9/21/2023 10/23/2023 11/20/2023        
6 Wave Hotel (44) M 20TH 100-41211 7/17/2023 8/7/2023 9/18/2023 10/18/2023 11/20/2023        
7 Man Bch Motel (13) M 20TH 100-41211 7/21/2023 8/20/2023 9/21/2023 10/20/2023 11/20/2023        
8 Marriott (380) M 20TH 100-41211 7/19/2023 8/21/2023 9/20/2023 10/20/2023 11/20/2023        
9 Residence Inn (176) M 20TH 100-41211 7/20/2023 8/18/2023 9/22/2023 10/23/2023 11/20/2023        

10 Sea Horse Inn (33) M 20TH 100-41211 7/19/2023 8/16/2023 9/13/2023 10/13/2023 11/16/2023        
11 Sea View Inn (18) M 20TH 100-41211 7/20/2023 8/21/2023 9/20/2023 10/20/2023 11/20/2023        
12 Shade (38) M 20TH 100-41211 7/19/2023 8/18/2023 9/15/2023 10/16/2023 11/17/2023        
13 Hotel Correa (1) M 20TH 100-41211 7/3/2023 8/2/2023 9/5/2023 10/2/2023 11/2/2023        

Sub Total 648,584$        867,354$       870,688$        729,154$       776,351$       -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           3,892,131$     
SHORT TERM RENTAL TOT:

14 $ Amount of TOT M 20TH 100-41212 59,766$          124,903$       110,051$        41,161$          75,777$         400,409$        
15 # of Short Term Rental TOT Payments 60                   66                  69                   52                   74                  

MB STUDIOS:

16 CRP MB Studios % M 20TH 100-41221 8/1/2023 9/12/2023 10/18/2023 11/20/2023         38,481$          

17 CRP MB Studios-Fire M 20TH 100-42204 8/1/2023 9/27/2023 10/18/2023 11/20/2023         1,060$            

18 CRP MB Studios-Fire Inv. M 1ST 100-42201 9/27/2023 10/18/2023           4,167$            
19 CRP MB Studios Annual Fire Fee M 20TH 100-42201 10/18/2023 10/18/2023 11/20/2023 11/20/2023         28,000$          

LEASES:

20 Metlox M 1ST 100-44401 20,083$          20,083$         20,083$          20,083$          20,083$               100,417$        

21 Metlox - Profit A MARCH 100-44401             -$                

22 Bay Club- Bldg Rent M 10TH 100-44404 4,390$            4,390$           4,390$            4,508$            4,508$                  22,185$          

23 Bay Club-% M 10TH 100-44403 29,210$          29,210$         29,210$          29,999$          29,999$                147,627$        

24 Bay Club - Tennis Rent M 10TH 100-44402 29,210$          29,210$         29,210$          29,999$          29,999$                147,627$        

25 Bay Club -Parking M 10TH 100-44405 3,188$            3,188$           3,188$            3,274$            3,274$                  16,110$          

26 County Library Parking M 15TH 100-44411 783$               783$              783$               783$               783$                     3,917$            

27 Sprint M 30TH 100-44421 6,679$            6,679$           6,679$            6,679$                26,717$          

28 AT & T M 1ST 100-44421 7,056$            7,056$           7,056$            7,650$            7,409$                 36,228$          

29 Verizon 16/Valley lease M 25TH 100-44421 5,837$            5,837$           5,837$            5,837$            5,837$                 29,183$          

30 Marriott-Min M 20TH 100-44406 33,333$          33,333$         33,333$          33,333$          33,333$               166,667$        

31 Marriott - % Q 31ST 100-44407 459,137$          474,110$               933,247$        

32 Marriott Golf Course Q 31ST 100-44408 6,620$              6,402$                   13,022$          

33 United States Post Office M 1ST 100-44410 4,858$            4,858$           4,858$            4,858$                   19,433$          

34 Village Mall Parking M 25TH 100-44409 16,409$          16,409$         17,695$          10,319$                 60,831$          

35 Shade #1 M 15TH 100-44412 993$               993$              993$               993$               993$                     4,965$            

36 Storage Shade  #2 M 15TH 100-44412 840$               840$              840$               863$               863$                     4,244$            

37 Triolgy Day Spa Storage M 15TH 100-44412 850$               809$                        1,659$            

38 Metlox (shared maint.) Q 15th 520-47307 3,389$              3,729$                    7,117$            

39 Lemonade M 1st 100-44412 614$               614$              614$                        1,841$            

FY 2023/2024 
City of Manhattan Beach

Monthly Schedule of TOT, Lease and Miscellaneous Payments
As of: 11/30/2023
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MONTHLY REVENUES

Due Date Acct # July 2023 Aug 2023 Sept 2023 Oct 2023 Nov 2023 Dec 2023 Jan 2024 Feb 2024 Mar 2024 Apr 2024 May 2024 June 2024    TOTALS

FY 2023/2024 
City of Manhattan Beach

Monthly Schedule of TOT, Lease and Miscellaneous Payments
As of: 11/30/2023

FRANCHISES:

40 Verizon/Frontier Comm. Q QUARTERLY 100-41213  50,340$           48,051$                98,391$          

41 Verizon/ Frontier PEG A FEBRUARY 100-21312  4,110$             3,857$                  7,967$            

42 Charter Communications (PEG) Q QUARTERLY 100-21311  16,300$           15,637$                31,936$          

43 Charter Communications (Basic) Q QUARTERLY 100-41213  81,498$           78,184$                159,682$        

44 Van Lingen Towing M 15TH 100-46207 6,821$            6,767$           5,480$            4,849$                    23,917$          

45 So Cal Edison A APRIL 100-41213             -$                

46 So Cal Gas A APRIL 100-41213             -$                

MISC. PAYMENTS             

47 Waste Mgmt-Recycle A JUNE 510-46415 40,000$                     40,000$          

48 Waste Mgmt-CRC M QUARTERLY 100-46412 23,041$            17,571$                  40,612$          

49 Waste Mgmt-PaintCare M QUARTERLY 100-46452 390$                 383$                      773$               

49 Mrs. June Mikrut A AUG $25 503-46402    25$                         25$                 

50 Median-Hermosa Bch A AUGUST 100-46421    2,157$                    2,157$            

51 Median-Redondo Bch A AUGUST 100-46421             -$                

52 Panchos-Pkg Spaces M 1ST 520-47301 975$               975$              1,024$            975$                       3,949$            

53 Signals-Target A DEC 100-46113    1,256$                    1,256$            

54 Fusion Sushi 270 Sq. Ft M 20Th 100-42105 810$               810$              810$               810$               810$                     4,050$            

55 Summers  44 Sq. Ft. A JULY 100-42105             -$                

56 Uncle Bills 195 Sq. Ft M 1ST 100-42105 585$               585$              585$               585$               585$                     2,925$            

57 Ocean View 270 Sq. Ft M 1ST 100-42105 810$               810$              810$               810$               810$                     4,050$            

58 Legacy Inmate Comm M 1ST 100-21402 40$                 32$                69$                          140$               

59 Northrop Grumman A JULY 100-42105   1,484$                     1,484$            
60 DBID - Dekralite (Annual Pmt) M FEB 100-46452             -$                

COVID 19 BUSINESS LOANS             

61 Crimson Hotel (Kaluba LLC) M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 217$               217$              217$               217$               6,303$                  7,170$            

62 Wave Hotel (Veejeta LP) M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 217$               217$              217$               217$               6,303$                  7,170$            

63 Salvatore's Shoe Repair M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               288$              289$               289$               289$                     1,444$            

63 Gelato Angels M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               289$              289$               289$                       1,156$            

64 Harry's Cleaners M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               289$              289$               289$               289$                     1,445$            

65 4 Corner's Deposition Summaries, In M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               289$              289$               289$               229$                     1,385$            

66 TY Engineering and Design, Inc M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 2,000$            2,000$           2,000$            65$                         6,065$            

67 Three Thirteen Salon M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301             -$                

68 BBK Retail M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               289$              289$               289$               289$                     1,445$            

69 Aesthetics on Highland M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 228$               228$              228$               217$               217$                     1,116$            

70 Le Nour LLC M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               303$              289$               289$               289$                     1,459$            

71 Kasai Hair M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 289$               289$              289$               289$               289$                     1,445$            

72 Roundhouse M 1ST
100-44302 & 

100-44301 274$                          274$               

A - Annual
Q - Quarterly
M - Monthly
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Dollars
Total AR 0 1-30 30-60 60-90 90-120 >120

July $342,546        20,792           $286,580       $11,670        $4,948         $1,183         $17,373         
August 179,696         31,296           33,343           103,567        1,879           1,271           8,339             
September 165,071         120,335         23,241           2,980            7,508           1,879           9,128             
October 239,419         93,559           117,413         16,281          670              5,435           6,062             
November 248,308         113,102         102,868         24,287          850              215              6,987             
December
January
February
March
April
May
June

Avg. $235,008        $75,817         $112,689       $31,757         $3,171         $1,997          $9,578            

Percentages
Total AR 0 1-30 30-60 60-90 90-120 >120

July 100% 6% 84% 3% 1% 0% 5%
August 100% 17% 19% 58% 1% 1% 5%
September 100% 73% 14% 2% 5% 1% 6%
October 100% 39% 49% 7% 0% 2% 3%
November 100% 46% 41% 10% 0% 0% 3%
December #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
January #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
February #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
March #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
April #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
May #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
June #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Avg. 100% 36% 41% 16% 2% 1% 4%

FY 2023-2024
City of Manhattan Beach

Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable 
Aging Statistical Report
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No. Invoice No. Type  Balance 

1 116968 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,272.24$                        

TOTAL  MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,272.24$                     

No. Customer ID Type  Balance 

1 112921 UTILITY BILLING 56.28$                               

2 107034 UTILITY BILLING 63.68$                               

3 105541 UTILITY BILLING 73.61$                                 

4 113282 UTILITY BILLING 97.91$                                 

5 113407 UTILITY BILLING 133.53$                              

6 116265 UTILITY BILLING 153.87$                               

7 116220 UTILITY BILLING 162.74$                              

8 104926 UTILITY BILLING 176.31$                                

9 106193 UTILITY BILLING 186.21$                               

10 116849 UTILITY BILLING 186.47$                               

11 100704 UTILITY BILLING 200.43$                            

12 102717 UTILITY BILLING 202.39$                            

13 102470 UTILITY BILLING 229.18$                              

14 116282 UTILITY BILLING 322.40$                            

15 115692 UTILITY BILLING 400.51$                             

16 103480 UTILITY BILLING 405.50$                            

17 104208 UTILITY BILLING 456.02$                            

18 106343 UTILITY BILLING 471.57$                               

19 115724 UTILITY BILLING 491.24$                              

20 111382 UTILITY BILLING 502.79$                            

21 104847 UTILITY BILLING 519.31$                                

22 100247 UTILITY BILLING 548.20$                            

MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

UTILITY BILLING ACCOUNTS

FY 2023-2024

Period Covering April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023 

Summary of Write-Offs (Under $5,000)
City of Manhattan Beach

Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable, Utility Billing, & Ambulance
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FY 2023-2024

Period Covering April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023 

Summary of Write-Offs (Under $5,000)
City of Manhattan Beach

Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable, Utility Billing, & Ambulance

23 101417 UTILITY BILLING 619.56$                              

24 105988 UTILITY BILLING 633.70$                             

25 107629 UTILITY BILLING 717.50$                              

26 106525 UTILITY BILLING 773.20$                             

27 100880 UTILITY BILLING 777.73$                              

28 101434 UTILITY BILLING 1,188.48$                             

29 100054 UTILITY BILLING 1,884.71$                             

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING ACCOUNTS 12,635.03$                  

No. Account No. Type  Balance 

1 555951 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,938.00 

2 558965 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,839.00 

3 855608 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         2,712.00 

4 759573 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                             50.00 

5 855880 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,864.00 

6 855892 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,043.00 

7 855503 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                           255.00 

8 855950 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,053.00 

9 713723 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

10 686916 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,007.00 

11 855934 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,970.00 

12 855562 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,826.00 

13 667634 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,007.00 

14 596342 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,208.00 

15 606916 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,955.00 

16 855983 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                             100.73 

17 855977 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          2,116.00 

18 855951 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,932.00 

AMBULANCE BILLING ACCOUNTS
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FY 2023-2024

Period Covering April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023 

Summary of Write-Offs (Under $5,000)
City of Manhattan Beach

Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable, Utility Billing, & Ambulance

19 855509 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                             50.00 

20 855821 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,872.00 

21 667632 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,076.00 

22 855888 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                           255.00 

23 855981 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,001.00 

24 686922 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,984.00 

25 855848 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,853.00 

26 855898 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,796.00 

27 855985 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

28 855565 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,834.00 

29 855622 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

30 585330 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,955.00 

31 667625 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,955.00 

32 650563 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,099.00 

33 855973 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,001.00 

34 855579 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,757.00 

35 855845 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,853.00 

36 855543 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,872.00 

37 855506 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

38 855558 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                              175.50 

39 855611 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                              126.75 

40 855974 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

41 855830 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,864.00 

42 650577 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,007.00 

43 855820 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        1,902.00 

44 855855 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,777.00 

45 855966 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          200.00 

46 855952 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,867.50 
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Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable, Utility Billing, & Ambulance

47 561745 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                             182.00 

48 569740 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,862.00 

49 855860 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,853.00 

50 601240 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,099.00 

51 856708 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,987.00 

52 855850 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         2,815.00 

53 855923 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,984.00 

54 650575 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          200.00 

55 856702 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,833.00 

56 855556 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,826.00 

57 855831 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,693.00 

58 569748 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,856.00 

59 855497 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            468.00 

60 855870 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          2,318.92 

61 855866 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            150.00 

62 855929 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,069.00 

63 855572 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                                 115.91 

64 856761 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         2,971.00 

65 686923 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

66 561788 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,007.00 

67 569742 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

68 855865 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

69 855896 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,826.00 

70 855862 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            120.00 

71 855909 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            120.00 

72 855972 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            120.00 

73 855877 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                                99.12 

74 855859 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,758.00 
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75 855825 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,872.00 

76 855965 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          200.00 

77 855602 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,853.00 

78 555952 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,810.00 

79 855834 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        1,902.00 

80 855968 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                             1,331.44 

81 855817 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

82 580515 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,955.00 

83 855583 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         2,158.00 

84 855890 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                             50.00 

85 855610 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,853.00 

86 855819 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,693.00 

87 855606 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,864.00 

88 855942 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

89 855568 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            129.00 

90 856773 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                           3,131.00 

91 855919 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,839.00 

92 855924 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,925.00 

93 855926 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,833.00 

94 855901 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

95 686917 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,856.00 

96 855826 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

97 855593 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,788.00 

98 855571 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,796.00 

99 855853 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,921.00 

100 855990 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,777.00 

101 855531 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                              153.75 

102 544201 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                            662.40 
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Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable, Utility Billing, & Ambulance

103 611645 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                         1,938.00 

104 855604 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

105 713732 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,362.34 

106 555953 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,902.00 

107 642724 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       2,902.00 

108 855936 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                        2,948.00 

109 601239 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,978.00 

110 855519 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

111 855907 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                          1,845.00 

112 855941 AMBULANCE BILLING  $                       3,093.00 

TOTAL AMBULANCE ACCOUNTS 202,423.36$              

SUBTOTAL ALL ACCOUNTS 216,330.63$                

Date:

Finance Director:
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